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Board's Report

To,
The Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting their 7" Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 (“financial year under review”)

Financial Results

During the financial year under review, the Company has earned income of Rs. 29,559 (INR in Thousands).

The Financial Summary of the Company for the F.Y. ended 2022-23 is given below:

Particulars Year Ended on 31 March, 2023 | Year Ended on 31 March, 2022
(Figures in INR Thousands) (Figures in INR Thousands)

Total Revenue 270,717 412,807
Other Income 4,866 1,679

Total Income 275,583 414,486

Total Expenses 238,966 387,806
Profit /loss before taxation 36,617 26,680
Less: Tax Expenses 7,058 1663
Profit / loss after tax 29,559 25,017

Reserves

During the year, Rs. 5,956 (in thousands) were transferred to the Statutory Reserve created under the
provisions of Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Dividend
The Board of Directors did not recommend dividend for the financial year 2022-23.
Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Company continues to fulfill all the norms and standards laid down by the NHB pertaining to non—
performing assets, capital adequacy, statutory liquidity assets etc. As at March 31, 2023, the Company’s
capital adequacy ratio (CAR) stood at 34.91% of which Tier | capital was 33.66% and Tier Il capital was
1.25% as per regulatory norms.

Order Passed by Regulators

During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals against or by the Company impacting the going concern status or operations of the Company
in future.

Material Changes and Commitment

Material changes and commitment, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate
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and the date of the report. There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company, which have occurred after March 31, 2023 till the date of this report.

Market Borrowing

The Company complied with the provisions relating to the “Housing Finance Companies Issuance of Non
Convertible Debentures on private placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014” and “RBI HFC Directions” as
applicable and has been regular in payment of principal and interest on the NCDs.

Regulatory Guidelines

The power of regulation of Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) has been conferred on Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) and National Housing Board (NHB) to carry out the function of supervision of HFCs. RBI had
issued Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021 (RBI HFC Directions) which are applicable on the Company.

The Company is in compliance with the applicable provisions and requirements of the RBI/HFC Directions
and other directions/ guidelines issued by RBI/NHB wherever applicable.

Lending Operations

The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (NBFC-HFC) and is
engaged in Lending Operations in India. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main
business activities of the Company.

Brief description of the company’s working during the year/State of Company’s affair

The Company is a subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited (“CCSPL”) and is registered with the
National Housing Bank to carry on housing finance activities. The Company has earned interest income
of Rs. 270.72 (INR in Thousands) on loans. There are no outstanding material commitments, tax liabilities
etc. affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial
year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

The Board of the Company has approved merger of the Company with its parent Company i.e, Clix Capital
Services Private Limited in May, 2022 and consequently, the regulatory authorities i.e. RBl and NHB were
informed about the discontinuation of housing business and about the proposed merger with parent
Company as the parent company on grounds of, in addition to others, simplification of corporate
structure and offering single platform to customers for all lending products. This would be a smooth
transition and services to the customers would not be affected.

The RBI/NHB has, upon application by the Company, issued its Non Objection Certificate for the same.

Changes in the nature of business

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Details of Subsidiary / Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

During the year under review, the Company had no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies.
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Public Deposits

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any public deposit(s) under the provisions
contained in section 73 of the act read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Auditors

e Statutory Auditors

M/s DMKH & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm registration no. 116886W) continues to be the Statutory
Auditor of the Company till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024.

Auditor’s Report: The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

e Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s VKC & Associates, Company Secretaries
(ICSI Firm Registration No.P2018DE077000) were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company
to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Auditor’s Report: The Secretarial Audit Report as given by the Secretarial Auditor in the form of MR-3 is
appended as Annexure 2 to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report is self explanatory and does not
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

e Internal Audit & Control

The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of internal
controls with the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an
independent, objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organization’s risk management, control and governance processes. The framework is commensurate
with the nature of the business and the size of its operations. Internal auditing at the Company involves
the utilization of a systematic methodology for analysing business processes or organizational problems
and recommending solutions to add value and improve the organization’s operations. The audit
approach verifies compliance with the regulatory, operational and system related procedures and
controls.

During the financial year under review, no material or serious observations have been received from the
Auditors of the Company citing inefficacy or inadequacy of such controls.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the
design/operation were observed per the provisions of Rule 8(5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not
reported any incident of fraud to the Audit, during the year under review.
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Accounting Treatment

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other provisions of the Act. The details of the
accounting treatment followed during the financial year are mentioned in Notes to Financial Statements.

Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
employees

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised a policy for selection and
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Senior Management Employees and their
remuneration namely, Nomination & Remuneration Policy.

Credit Rating

During the period under review, the Company’s debt instruments were rated as under:
Name of the Credit Rating | Name Rating Assigned
Agency

Bank Loan Ratings Not Applicable | Withdrawn
Acuite Ratings & Research
Non Convertible ACUITE A+ | Stable | Downgraded | Negative
Debentures (NCD) to Stable

Share Capital & Capital Structure

During the year under review, there was no change in the Share Capital of the Company as no shares
were issued.

Extract of the annual return

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return as on March
31, 2023 in Form MGT-7 shall be available (upon submission with MCA) on the website of the Company
which can be accessed through https://www.clix.capital/clix-housing/

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The Company being incorporated for providing housing finance services, does not carry out any activity
relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and export of materials, goods or services.
Given the nature of the activities of the Company the provisions pertaining to conservation of energy
and technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo are not applicable to the Company.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel including those who were appointed or have resigned during the
year

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation Date of Change Appointment/resignation
1 Kaushik Ramakrishnan Director - -
2 Vikram Rathi Director 30/09/2022 Appointment
3 Rashmi Mohanty Whole Time Director 21/10/2022 Resignation
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4 Aparna Bihany Additional Director/ 2/12/2022 Appointment
Whole Time Director

Alka Yadav Company Secretary 31/12/2022 Resignation
6 Ashish K. Pandey Company Secretary 01/01/2023 Appointment
06/03/2023 Resignation

7 Amit Kumar Jain CFO - --

Board of Directors

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business
strategy. The Board of Directors met 8 (Eight) times during the financial year 2022-23, the details of
Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed
as Annexure 1 which forms part of this report.

Annual Evaluation - Board, Its Committees and of Individual Director

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees,
the Chairperson and individual Directors for the financial year 2022-23 in pursuance to the provisions of
the Act and Rules made thereunder as amended from time to time.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee evaluated the Directors basis, amongst others, Board
structure, effectiveness of board processes, receipt of regular inputs and information, codes & policies
for strengthening governance, functioning, performance & structure of Board Committees, skill set,
knowledge & expertise of Directors, preparation & contribution at Board Meetings, leadership etc.

Particulars of loans, Guarantees/Investments

Pursuant to Section 186(11) (a) of the Act read with Rule 11(2) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, the loan made, guarantee given or security provided in the ordinary course of
business by a Housing Finance Company registered with National Housing Bank ("NHB") as required
under Section 29A of the NHB Act, 1987, are exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186
of the Act.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

All the related party transactions entered into, during the year, were pursuant to Section 188(1) of the
Act on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. The Related Party Transactions are
reported in Form AOC-2, in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with rules made thereunder which is

annexed to this Report as Annexure 3.

The Disclosure of related party transaction also forms part of Schedule to Accounts annexed to the
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account.

Particular of Employees
Pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule

5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are not applicable to the Company since no remuneration is paid to Director.
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Risk Management Policy

The Company is in the business of lending home loans and loans against properties. The Company has in
place effective Risk Management framework so that risks that the Company faces are identified,
controlled and priced in a manner that the Company can continue its operations in a profitable and
sustainable manner. Risk Management is continuous process and Company is constantly monitoring its
applicable risk and seek modern and scientific methods to mitigate the same. Further, the Company has
Risk Management Committee to monitor and evaluate the same.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby
state and confirm that:

e in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
and that no material departures have been made from the same;

e they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

e they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing fraud and other irregularities;

e they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Disclosures under Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace Act, 2013

The total employee strength of the Company is less than 10, thus, the provisions of Prevention of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace Act are not applicable.

Disclosure on establishment of a Vigil mechanism

Creating a fraud and corruption-free culture has always been at the Company’s core. Keeping in view of
the same and in compliance with the provisions of the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder, the Whistle-Blower Policy is formulated as part of the Vigil Mechanism
established by the Company for Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns, to provide a secure
environment and to encourage employees to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or
activities in the Company and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse personnel action
against those employees who report such Practices in good faith.

This Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy is framed in context of these statutory requirements and
to put in place an appropriate framework for this purpose.

Corporate Governance

The Company has a rich legacy of ethical governance practices and had implemented such practices as
mandated by law. The Company is committed to transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis
on business ethics.

The report on corporate governance is annexed as Annexure-1 and forms part of this Report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis report

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and directions issued by National Housing Bank
(NHB) and Reserve Bank of India (RBI), the MD&A Report forms an integral part of this report and gives
details of the overall industry structure, economic developments, performance and state of affairs of
your Company’s business in India, risk management systems and other material developments during
the year under review, as per Annexure - 4.

Board Committees

During the period under review the Board of the Company had the following committees:

Audit Committee

The provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its Powers)
Rules, 2014, relating to the Composition of Audit Committee are applicable on the Company. The
members of the Audit Committee met Four (4) times during the period under review, the details of
Directors, meetings and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed
as Annexure 1 which forms part of this report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are applicable to the Company. The members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met Two
(2) time during the year on 30" May 2022 & 2™ December 2022, the details of Directors, meetings and
attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed as Annexure 1 which
forms part of this report.

Remuneration policy

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors had approved and adopted
the nomination & remuneration policy, inter alia, for the appointment and fixation of remuneration of
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees of your Company as applicable. The
Nomination & Remuneration Committee has also developed the criteria for determining the
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors and for making payments to
Executive and Non—Executive Directors of the Company.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

Accordance with the Policy Circular No. NHB/ ND/DRS/Pol-No. 35/2010-11 dated 10th October 2010, the
Board of Directors constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO). The members of Asset
Liability Management Committee met Four (4) times during the year the details of Directors, meetings
and attendance thereat is mentioned in the Corporate Governance report annexed as Annexure 1 which
forms part of this report.

Risk Management Committee

The Company is in the business of lending to individuals and non-individual clients. The Company faces
various risks in its scale of operations. The Company has in place a Risk Management Committee which
meets at regular intervals to take note on various risks involved and bring out means and measures to
reduce the risks. The Committee met once, during the year, on 13" February, 2023. The Composition,
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meetings and attendance are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report which is annexed at Annexure
1 and forms part of this Report.

Details of Debenture Trustee
The details of the Debenture Trustee of the Company are as under:-

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85 Paud Road, Pune 411038, Contact No.-
0120- 25280081, Email Id: dt@ctltrustee.com

Fit and Proper Criteria & Code of Conduct

The Company has received undertaking and declaration from each Director on fit and proper criteria in
terms of the provisions of Housing Finance Companies — Corporate Governance Directions, 2016 (NHB
Directions). The Board of Directors has confirmed that all existing Directors are fit and proper to continue
to hold the appointment as Directors on the Board, as reviewed and recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee on fit and proper criteria under NHB Directions. All the Directors of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company.

Details of Unclaimed Non-Convertible Debentures
The said provisions are not applicable to your Company.
Secretarial Standards

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Transfer of amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

The Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF).

Acknowledgements

Directors wish to place on record their heartfelt appreciation for the efforts of the Company’s
stakeholder. During this financial year no order has been passed by the authorities which impacts the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

For and On Behalf of
CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Aparna Bihany Vikram Rathi
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 09039798 DIN: 08769167

Date: 09/08/2023
Place: Gurgaon

Public & Non Confidential Information



Annexure 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal
accountability, ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators,
employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large. Strong leadership and effective
corporate governance practices have been the Company’s hallmark inherited from the Clix culture and
ethos.

The Company is always committed towards achieving the highest standards of Corporate Governance by
staying true to its core values:

e Customer First

e Transparency

e Integrity

e Professionalism

The Company continually works towards implementing robust, resilient and best-in-class corporate
practices in every facet of its operations and in all spheres of its activities, thereby generating higher
returns and maximizing shareholder value.

The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) are responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate
Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the management serves
the short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our
governance practices, under which we strive to maintain an effective, informed and independent Board.
We keep our governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices
across the Country.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At Clix Housing, we believe that a diversified, active and well-informed Board is necessary to ensure
highest standards of Corporate Governance. We believe that an enlightened Board consciously creates
a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve the quality of
governance. The statutory and other significant and material information is placed before the Board to
enable it to discharge its fiduciary duties keeping in mind the interests of all its stakeholders and the
Company’s corporate governance philosophy. The Company’s policy is to separate the Board functions
of governance and management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2023, the Company’s Board consists of 3 (Three) Directors.

Board of Directors Date of change Appointment / Resignation
Vikram Rathi - -
Kaushik Ramakrishnan -- -
Aparna Bihany 2/12/2022 Appointment
Rashmi Mohanty 21/10/2022 Resignation
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Note:

1. None of the Directors holds office as a director, including alternate director, in more than twenty (20) Companies at the
same time. None of them has directorships in more than ten (10) Public Companies. For reckoning the limit of Public
Companies, directorships of Private Companies that are either Holding or Subsidiary Company of a Public Company are
included.

2. Notwithstanding the number of directorships, as given above, the outstanding attendance record and participation of the
directors in Board/Committee meetings indicate their commitment and ability to devote adequate time to their
responsibilities as the Company’s fiduciaries.

NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY
NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Vikram Rathi, non executive director of the Company, holds 1 equity share of Rs. 10 each as the
nominee shareholders of Holding Company i.e. Clix Capital Services Private Limited. Apart from the
above, none of the other directors hold any shares (as own or on behalf of any other person on beneficial
basis) in the Company as on March 31, 2023.

PECUNIARY RELATIONSHIP

There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-Executive Directors vis-a-vis the Company,
apart from the sitting fees and commission, if any, received by them for attending the Meetings of the
Board and Committee(s) thereof.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company’s performance and business
strategy. During the financial year, the Board of Directors met 8 (Eight) times i.e., 30%" May, 2022, 7%
July, 2022, 10t August, 2022, 22" September, 2022, 31 October, 2022, 14" November, 2022, 2™
December, 2022 & 13" February, 2023 and the gap between two meetings was less than one hundred
and twenty days as required under Section 173 of the Act.

The details of Board, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

Board of Directors Date of Appointment | Total No. of Meeting Attendance during the
change / Resignation during FY 2022-2023 meeting
Vikram Rathi -- 8 8
Kaushik Ramakrishnan -- 8 8
Aparna Bihany 2/12/2022 Appointment 8 1
Rashmi Mohanty 21/10/2022 Resignation 8 3

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

Agenda papers along with the necessary documents and information are circulated to the Board and the
members of the Board Committee(s) well in advance before each meeting of the Board and Committee(s)
thereof. In addition to the general business items, the following items/ information is regularly placed
before the Board and/or Committees to the extent applicable:

¢ Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates;

e Capital Budgets and any updates;

e Quarterly, half yearly and annual results of the Company;

* Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board of Directors;
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¢ Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important;

* Any material defaults in financial obligations to and by the Company for substantial non payments;
e Strategic business proposal or activities to be undertaken;

¢ Purchase and disposal of major fixed assets;

¢ Sale of material nature of investments and assets, which are not in the normal course of Business;

® Reports on Internal Controls Systems, Internal Audit Reviews and Statutory Audit reviews etc.;

e Related Party Transactions;

¢ Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ Services; and
e Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

All material information is incorporated in the agenda for facilitating meaningful and focused discussions
at the meetings. Where it is not practicable to attach any document to the agenda, it is tabled before the
meeting. The quantum and quality of information supplied by the management to the Board goes well
beyond the minimum requirements stipulated under the Act, Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as per the requirements
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, wherever applicable.

MINUTES OF BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee meetings are recorded and draft minutes are
circulated to Board/Committee members for their comments and/or confirmation within 15 days from
the date of the meeting. The inputs, if any, of the Board & Committee Members are duly incorporated in
the minutes after which these are entered in the minute book within 30 days from the date of meeting.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES
i) AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 177(1) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Boards and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, NBFC Regulations and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations (SEBI LODR), as applicable, the Board had constituted Audit Committee. The members of the
Audit Committee met Four (4) times during the period under review i.e, on 30%" May 2022, 10* August
2022, 14" November 2022 and 13 February 2023.

The details of Committee membership, its meetings and attendance thereat are as under:

Members Date of Appointment | Total No. of Meeting | Attendance during
change / Resignation | during FY 2022-2023 the meeting
Vikram Rathi -- -- 4 4
Kaushik Ramakrishnan -- -- 4 4
Aparna Bihany 2/12/2022 | Appointment 4 1
Rashmi Mohanty 21/10/2022 Resignation 4 1

All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial statements and have relevant finance
and / or audit experience.

Terms of reference

The composition of the Audit Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting
functions are in accordance with the Act and SEBI LODR and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of
India (“RBI”). The responsibilities of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include:
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e To review the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit process,
the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct
of the Company;

e To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company
and discuss with Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;

e To review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of Audit
process;

¢ To examine the financial statement, financial results and the Auditors’ report thereon;

e To approve transactions or any subsequent modification to the transactions of the Company with
related parties;

e To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments;

¢ To approve payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory Auditors;

e To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems;

* To monitor end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

¢ To review the functioning of and compliance with the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy;

e To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of the internal control
systems;

e To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities etc. and

¢ To review Internal Audit Plan/ Calendar etc.

ii) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per the provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) the Board has constituted the Committee. The Committee met Two (2) times during
the year on 30" May 2022 and 2"! December 2022.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, details of meetings and attendance
thereat are as under:

Members Date of Appointment | Total No. of Meeting | Attendance during
change / Resignation | during FY 2022-2023 the meeting
Vikram Rathi - - 2 2
Kaushik Ramakrishnan -- -- 2 2
Rashmi Mohanty 21/10/2022 | Resignation 2 -
Aparna Bihany 2/12/2022 | Appointment 2 -

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, inter alia, include:

e To formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors the Company’s policies, relating to the
remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees, criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director;

e To formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of
Directors;

e To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who might be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal;

e To extend the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

¢ To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance;

Public & Non Confidential Information



e To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and other employees; and

e To devise a policy on “Board diversity”.

iiii) ASSET AND LIABILITY COMMITTEE

In accordance with the requirement of Reserve Bank of India guidelines on Asset - Liability Management
(ALM) System, the Board has constituted Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO Committee
met 4 times, during the year on 27" June, 2022, 27" September, 2022, 23 December, 2022, and 29"
March 2023.

The Committee Membership, meeting details and attendance thereat are as under:

Members Total No. of Meeting during FY Attendance during the meeting
Rakesh Kaul 4 4
Gagan Aggarwal 4 2
Vikram Rathi 4 4
Vijaykumar Ramakrishna 4 2
Dhariya Parikh 4 4
Ruchika Sharma 4 4
Naman Jain 4 4
Ankit Aggarwal 4 4
Shivam Miglani 4 2
Rashmi Mohanty 4 2

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the ALCO Committee, inter alia, include:

* To check the Asset Liability mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc;

¢ To help the Company to improve the overall system for effective risk management in various portfolios
held by the Company;

¢ Compliance with RBI Prudential Norms / directions / guidelines for asset liability management; and

e Debt Composition and plan of the Company for fund raising.

iv) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As per the requirement of SEBI LODR and NBFC regulations, the Board has, for monitoring legal risks and
mitigating the risks due to regular review of changes in the regulatory framework, constituted the Risk
Management Committee (RMC). The RMC met once on 13™ February, 2023, during the period under
review.

The Composition of the Committee, the details of meeting and attendance are as under:

Members Date  of | Appointment / | Total No. of Meeting | Attendance  during
change Resignation during FY 2022-2023 | the meeting

Kauhsik Ramakrishnan - -- 1 1

Vikram Rathi -- -- 1 1

Aparna Bihany 2/12/2022 | Appointment 1 1
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Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee, inter alia, include:

e To assist the Board in its oversight of various risks;

e To formulate a detailed Risk Management Policy and oversee implementation of the same, including
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

¢ To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate
risks associated with the business of the Company

¢ To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer; and

¢ To review and analyse risk exposure related to specific issues and provide oversight of risk across the
organization.

DISCLOSURES RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In terms of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, all related party transactions entered into by the
Company during FY 2022-23 were duly approved by the Audit Committee. No approval of the Board was
required as all the transactions were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business.
However, related party transactions were notified to the Board/ Committee under Indian Accounting
Standard 24 (Ind AS-24). Further, there is no potential conflict of the interests of the Company at large
due to such transactions.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Details of location, day, date and time of the General Meetings held during the last three years and
resolutions passed there at are given below.

Financial Year Location Day, Date & Time | Summary of Special Business passed

2021-2022 Video conferencing | Day —  Friday | - Regularization of Additional Director
(VC) / Other audio | Date — | Mr. Vikram Rathi as a Director of the
Visual means | September 30, | Company.
(OAVM) / (e-AGM) | 2022 - Approval of Related Party Transaction

Time - 12 noon with Clix Capital Services Private
Limited

2020-2021 Registered office — | Day — Thursday | -Appointment of Kaushik
4™ Floor, Kailash | Date -  30™ | Ramakrishnan as Director.
Building Kasturba | September, 2021 -Appointment of Venkatraman
Gandhi Marg, | Time —3:30 p.m. | Bharatdwaj as Director.
Cannaught  Place, - To approve and authorized to borrow
New Delhi 110001 money in terms of Section 180(1) &
INDIA Day - Section18(1)(A) of the Companies Act

2013
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2019-2020 Corporate office — | Day—Wednesday | - Appointment of Rashmi Mohanty as
901-B, 9™ Floor, | Date - September | Director.

Two Horizon | 30", 2020 - Appointment of Rahul Angara Rao.
Centre, DLF Phase- | Time —1:00 p.m.
Vv, Gurugram,

Haryana — 122002

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
For the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the financial results of the Company were announced on:

a) First quarter ended June 30, 2022 — Aug 10, 2022

b) Second quarter ended September 30, 2022 — Nov 14, 2022
¢) Third quarter ended December 31, 2022 — Feb 13, 2023

d) Fourth quarter ended March 31, 2023 — May 26, 2023

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) Results

The Company publishes limited reviewed un-audited standalone financial results on a half yearly and
quarterly basis. However, for the complete financial year, the audited standalone financial results are
published.

b) Newspapers wherein results are normally published
The quarterly/ half-yearly/ annual financial results were published in ‘Financial Express’ (English)
Newspaper.

c) Website, where displayed
The financial results and the official news releases are also placed on the Company’s website in the
‘Investors’ section on the following link https://www.clix.capital/investors/.com.

d) Annual Report

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, the audited financial statements (standalone), Board’s Report,
Auditors’ Report, Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) report and other important information
is circulated to shareholders and other stakeholders and is also available on the Company’s website at
https://www.clix.capital/investors/.com.

e) Reminder to Investors
Periodical reminders for unclaimed shares and unpaid dividends are sent to shareholders as per records
of the Company.

f) Official news releases
All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the SEBI LODR Regulations, are
also communicated to the concerned stock exchanges, besides being placed on the Company’s website.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting - date, time and venue:
Annual General Meeting (AGM) (for the Financial Year 2022-23)
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Day: Friday

Date: September 29, 2023

Time: 03:00 P.M.

Venue: The Company will conduct the meeting through VC / OAVM, relevant details of which have
been provided in the notice of AGM.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through its circulars Nos. 20/2020, 02/2021 and 2/2022
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Companies are allowed to hold Annual General Meeting
through VC/OAVM up to September 30, 2023 and send financial statements (including Board’s
report, Auditors’ Report and other documents to be attached therewith) through email.

Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for FY 2023 along with the Notice of AGM are being
sent by email to the members and all other persons/entities entitled to receive the same. As stated
above, 7™ AGM of the Company will be convened through VC or OAVM.

Financial Year:

The Financial Year of the Company starts from 1% April of a year and ends on 31% March of the
following year.

Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable

Listing on Stock Exchange: The Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company are listed on —
National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051. The Company has paid Annual Listing Fees for FY 2022-
23 to the exchange within the stipulated time.

Stock Code: Not Applicable*

Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year: Not Applicable*

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index etc: Not
Applicable*

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the Directors report shall explain the reason
thereof: Not Applicable

Share transfer system: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has in 2018 mandated Dematerialization of
shares for all Unlisted Public Companies. However, wholly owned subsidiaries were exempt from the
requirement.

The Company being wholly owned subsidiary of Clix Capital Services Private Limited has its shares in
physical format only. The transfer and transmission request and dealing with the Shareholders is
handled in house by the Company.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31° March 2023:

S. No. | Name of the equity | No. of equity | %age | Nature of Ownership

shareholder Share held

Clix Capital Services Private Ltd. | 54,999,994 | 100 Holding Company
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2 Vishal Jain 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
3 Vikram Rathi 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
4 Gagan Aggarwal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
5 Sanjay Rajpal 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
6 Rakesh Kaul 1 - Nominee of Holding Company
7 Thimma Prakash Shetty 1 - Nominee of Holding Company

7. Plant locations: Not Applicable

Address for correspondence Shareholders/investors can correspond with the Company at the
following address:

Regd. Office: Plot No. 23, 5™ Floor, Aggarwal corporate Tower, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place,
New Delhi- 110008

Corporate Office: 901B, 9% Floor, Two Horizon Center, DLF Phase V, Gurugram, Haryana — 122 002
8. Credit Rating: The list of credit ratings for all instruments has been provided in the Board's Report.

9. Dates of book closure: Not Applicable During the period under review, the Board does not
recommend payment of any Final Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2022-23.

10. Dividend Payment: During the period under review, the Board does not recommend payment of any
Final Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2022-23.

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange and hence certain details
are not applicable to the Company.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS

As per section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 any money transferred by the Company to the unpaid
dividend account and remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (the ‘Fund’) set up by the Central
Government.

TRANSFER / TRANSMISSION / TRANSPOSITION OF SHARES

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide its Circular No. MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2009 dated 20t
May, 2009 and Circular No. MRD/DoP/SE/RTA/Cir-03/2010 dated 7t January, 2010 made it mandatory
that a copy of the PAN Card is to be furnished to the Company in the following cases: z

- deletion of name of deceased shareholder(s) where shares are held jointly in the name of two or more
shareholders;

- transmission of shares to the legal heirs where shares are held solely in the name of deceased
shareholder; and

- transposition of shares where order of names of shareholders are to be changed in the physical shares
held jointly by two or more shareholders.

Investors, therefore, are requested to furnish the self-attested copy of PAN card, at the time of sending
the physical share certificate(s) to the Company, for effecting any of the above stated requests.
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Shareholders are also requested to keep record of their specimen signature before lodgment of shares
with the Company to avoid probability of signature mismatch at a later date.

CONSOLIDATION OF MULTIPLE FOLIOS

Shareholder(s) of the Company who have multiple accounts in identical name(s) or holding more than
one Share Certificate in the same name under different Ledger Folio(s) are requested to apply for
consolidation of such Folio(s) and send the relevant Share Certificates to the Company.

NOMINATION FACILITY

Provision of Section 72 of the Act, read with rule 19(1) of the rules made thereunder extends nomination
facility to individuals holding shares in the physical form. To help the legal heirs/ successors get the shares
transmitted in their favour, shareholder(s) are requested to furnish the particulars of their nomination
in the prescribed Nomination Form.

UPDATE YOUR CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS/ BANK MANDATE/ EMAIL ID
To ensure all communications/ monetary benefits received promptly, all shareholders holding shares in

physical form are requested to notify to the Company, change in their address / bank details / email ID
instantly by written request under the signatures of sole/ first joint holder.

QUOTE FOLIO NO. / DP ID NO.

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners are requested to quote their Folio Nos./DP ID Nos., as the case may be,
in all correspondence with the Company.

Shareholders are also requested to quote their Email IDs, Contact/Fax numbers (landline/ cell phone) for
prompt reply to their correspondence.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its inception and thus, no amount was required to
be transferred, on account of unclaimed dividend, to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

The provisions related to the electronic voting are not applicable to the Company.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Particulars Details

Disclosures on materially significant related party | There are no material related party transactions
transactions that may have potential conflict with the | during the year under review that have potential
interests of listed entity at large. conflict with the interest of the Company
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Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties,
structures imposed on the listed entity by Stock
Exchange(s) or the Securities and Exchange Board of
India or any statutory authority, on any matter related
to capital markets, during the last three years.

Nil

Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel have
been denied access to the audit committee.

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act
and other applicable regulations, the Audit Committee
of the Company recommended the Board of Directors
for the approval of the policy/mechanism on dealing
with whistle blowers. However, the Audit Committee
reviews Whistle Blower cases on quarterly basis.
During the year, no individual was denied access to the
Audit Committee for reporting concerns, if any. The
said policy/mechanism is disclosed on the Company’s
website, link for which is https://www.clix.capital/wp
content/uploads/2023/06/vigil-mechanism-clix-
housing-26May2023-clean.pdf company-policies. The
Company has put in place a whistle blower policy to
support the Code of Conduct. The details about the
vigil mechanism forms part of the Board’s report.

Web link where policy for determining ‘Material’
Subsidiaries is disclosed.

The Company does not have any ‘Material’ Subsidiary
Company

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

Number of complaints filed during the year: 0
Number of complaints disposed off during the
year: 0
Number of complaints pending as on end
of the years:0

Disclosure by the Company of ‘Loans and advances in
the nature of loans to firms/ companies in which
directors are interested by name and amount.

Nil

NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT OF SUB-PARAS ABOVE, WITH REASONS THEREOF SHALL BE

DISCLOSED

The outstanding listed Non Convertible Debentures are less than Rs. 500 cr., thus, the provisions related
to composition of Board as per the LODR are not applicable.

THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (A) TO
(I) OF REGULATION 62(1A) OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS SHALL BE MADE
IN THE SECTION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

The outstanding listed Non Convertible Debentures are less than Rs. 500 cr., thus, the provisions of

regulation 17 to 27 of the LODR are not applicable.
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DECLARATION SIGNED BY THE WHOLETIME DIRECTOR STATING THAT THE
MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL HAVE AFFIRMED COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT
OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The outstanding listed Non Convertible Debentures are less than Rs. 500 cr., thus, the provisions related
to Code of Conduct are not applicable.

For and On Behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Date : 9™ August, 2023 Aparna Bihany Vikram Rathi
Place: Gurgaon Wholetime Director Director
(DIN: 09039798) (DIN: 08769167)
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Annexure 2
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Clix Housing Finance Private Limited)
CIN: U65999DL2016PLC308791

Plot No. 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Sikka

Marg, Rajendra Place, 110008 New Delhi.

We report that:

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CLIX HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter referred as ‘the
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Company’s Responsibilities

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the maintenance of secretarial
record under the Companies Act, 2013 and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards. Further the Company’s management and the Board of
Directors are also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate systems and process,
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to identify, monitor and ensure compliances
with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Auditor’s Responsibilities Statement

Our responsibility is only to examine and verify those compliances on a test basis and express an opinion
on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Company. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Limitations

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is
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an unavoidable risk that some Misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the Secretarial Auditing
Standards as prescribed by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

Further, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the secretarial records including minutes,
documents, registers, other records and returns related to the applicable laws on the Company etc.
However, due to lockdown to fight COVID-19 followed by restrictions imposed by local authorities and
State Government, some of the documents and records mentioned above have been received via
electronic means. The management has confirmed that the records submitted to us are the true and
correct. We have also relied upon representation given by the management of the Company for certain
areas which otherwise requires physical verification.

Basis of Opinion

We have followed the audit practices, secretarial auditing standards and processes as were applicable
and appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification in some cases were done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion. We also believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Secretarial Records and Compliances made thereunder

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March
31, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions
of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; Not Applicable

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations(LODR), 2015;

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021: Not Applicable

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue And Listing Of Non-Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not applicable as
the Company is not registered as Registrar to issue and Share Transfer Agent during the
financial year under review.

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity shares) Regulations, 2021; -
Not Applicable

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; - Not
Applicable

(vi) The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 rules, regulations,
master-directions and guidelines made issued thereunder as are specifically applicable to Housing
Finance Company on test basis and relying upon the representation made by the Company and its
officers for the system and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances made thereunder
and the Company is generally regular in fillings with National Housing Bank (NHB).

We have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following: -

(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India which were
generally complied.

(i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Standards, Master Circular/ Directions and Guidelines etc. mentioned above except

intimation of record date to NSE under regulation 60(2) of SEBI LODR, 2015 for which fine has been

paid by the Company.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company has been duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and, the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Subject to the provisions of Section 149(1) (a) of the Act, the Company has appointed Ms. Aparna Bihany
as Additional Director (with whole time charge) of the Company w.e.f December 02, 2022 with the
approval of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for filing up the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of Ms.
Rashmi Mohanty, Whole Time Director w.e.f October 20, 2022.

Adequate notice(s) have been given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance and,
in case of shorter notice, compliance as required under the Act has been made by the Company and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried out with requisite majority
of the members of the Board or committees as the case may be. Further there is no case of views of the
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dissenting members as per the recordings in the minutes of the meetings of the Board or Committee(s)
thereof.

We further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with the applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has the following specific events/actions
having major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, standards & guidelines, if any, as may be referred to above:

During the period under review.

The Board of the Company in their meeting held on 7th July, 2022 has in principally approved the merger and
the draft scheme of the amalgamation of the Company with its Holding Company i.e. Clix Capital Services
Private Limited.

Consequently, an application seeking No Objection from National Housing Bank (NHB) has been filed
by the Company. Further the Company has also issued notices (CAA-9) to the regulators pursuant to
section 233 of the Act read with rule 25(1) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

However, no further actions have been taken by the Company in this regard till the closure of the
financial year.

The registered office of the Company has been changed from 4t Floor, Kailash Building Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
Connaught Place 110001 New Delhi to Plot No. 23, 5 Floor, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra Place 110008
New Delhi w.e.f November 25, 2022.

FOR VKC & ASSOCIATES

(Company Secretaries)
Unique Code: P2018DE077000

CS Ishan Khanna

Partner

ACS No. A53517

CP No. 24258

UDIN: A053517E000370856

Peer Review Certificate: 1955/2022
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Annexure 3
FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NA
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NA
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction NA

including the value, if any
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or NA
transactions’
f) Date of approval by the Board NA
g) Amount paid as advances, if any NA
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in General NA

meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of Clix Capital Services Private Ltd.
relationship
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Holding Company
c) Duration of the One Year

contracts/arrangements/transaction

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | At Arm’s Length Basis
transaction including the value, if any

e) Date of approval by the Board 30t May, 2022
f) Amount paid as advances, if any NA

For and On Behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Date : 9" August, 2023 Aparna Bihany Vikram Rathi
Place: Gurgaon Wholetime Director Director
(DIN: 09039798) (DIN: 08769167)
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Annexure-4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Industry structure and developments including risks and concerns related thereto:

Post pandemic, the real estate sector witnessed a huge hike in end users for residential properties. The
residential sector sales volumes grew substantially because of the change in viewpoint of the end users
as ownership of home provide a strong sense of stability. The growth in sales was also aided by low home
loan interest regime, stable house prices to name few.

This underpenetrated market and Government thrust on ‘housing for all’ is likely to support growth, going
forward as well. Further, due to rise in input costs and interest rates, house prices are expected to increase
which might change the end-user demand led market to investors.

India’s Housing Sector

The housing finance market in India is evolving, with various players offering finance for homebuyers.
However, HFCs continue to dominate the market, and government initiatives and incentives for affordable
housing could further increase the demand for housing finance. Over the years, the government has
initiated various reforms that have led to a rise in incomes and standards of living across the country. This,
and other trends, such as a budding preference for nuclear families, job mobility, etc., have resulted in an
increase in housing, over and above the existing demand-supply gap. In the home loan industry, Scheduled
Commercial Banks and Housing Finance Companies are the two major players that predominantly cater
to the financing needs of the Indian housing market. While public and private sector banks, along with
foreign banks, provide loans to prospective home buyers, the home mortgage finance market in India is
largely dominated by HFCs. The demand for housing is not limited to urban areas, and there is a need for
affordable housing in rural regions as well. To address this demand-supply mismatch, there may be special
incentives for customers and builders in this segment. Government initiatives such as ‘Housing for All’
have also created demand for housing finance, especially in the low-income segment.

Opportunities and threats

The Housing Finance market has lot of opportunities as both rural and semi-urban markets are vastly
underserved, there is massive housing shortage in the country. Further, the Government has its focus on
affordable housing. Urbanisation, nuclearization and population growth is also giving opportunities to the
housing market.

The market also have its share of threats high inflation and rise in borrowing cost, industry or economic
competitive situations and the uncertain economic and political environment.

Risk Management

As a housing finance company, the Company faces financial, operating, market, regulatory and compliance
risks, hence, risk management is crucial. The Company has risk management and audit framework in place
to identify, assess, monitor and manage various types of internal and external risks. In terms of the RBI
NDS Company has a Risk Management Policy (RMC) to oversee the credit risk management and ensure
that the credit risks are properly identified and are properly managed. The Company has a Board approved
Risk Management policy which lays down the guiding principles that help the management in complying
with the statutory and regulatory requirements/guidelines. The Company has an Asset and Liquidity
Management Committee (ALCO), which has the responsibility to manage the liquidity and interest rate
risk for the Company.
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Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has adequate internal Control System to ensure adherence to company's policies and
procedures, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to ensure that management information
and financial reporting is correct, reliable, and complete, to enable detection and prevention of frauds
and errors and to safeguard the company assets against loss from unauthorised use or disposition,
amongst others.

The internal control system of the Company is supplemented by extensive internal audits, regular reviews
by the management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure reliability of financial and all other
records to prepare financial data. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the Internal Audit reports to
get the effectiveness of the internal controls and compliance with the regulatory bodies. Audit Committee
also provides necessary oversight, gives recommendations, and monitors implementation of such
recommendations.

Discussion on financial performance

During the Financial Year 2023, the Company earned a Profit After Tax (PAT) of INR 29.55 (in thousands)
as compared to Profit after Tax of INR 25.01 (in thousands) in the previous financial Year 2022-2023.

The loan book of Company reduced from Rs. 2,096.13 (thousands) as on March 31, 2022 to Rs. 1,158.55
(thousands) as on March 31, 2022. As a result, it had Cash and Cash equivalent of Rs. 8.66 (in thousands)
as on March 31, 2023 (Rs. 353.41 thousands in previous year).

Material Developments in the Human Resources:

The Company ensures that provisions of various Labour Laws, other employment regulations are duly
complied and met with. The Company has zero tolerance for sexual Harassment at work place and has
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual Harassment at workplace in line with
the provisions of the sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, prohibition and redressal)
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder for the prevention and redressal of complaints of Sexual
Harassment at the Workplace.

For and On Behalf of
Clix Housing Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Date : 9" August, 2023 Aparna Bihany Vikram Rathi
Place: Gurgaon Wholetime Director Director
(DIN: 09039798) (DIN: 08769167)

Public & Non Confidential Information



DMKH & CO.

- CHAHTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Clix Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Clix Housing Finance Limited
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the yéar then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred 1o as “Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS")
prescribed under seetion 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit
{including other comprehensive incoma}, its changes in equity and its-cash flows for the year ended
on thet date.

Basis for Opinion |

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143{10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {"ICA)") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and
appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our gpinion
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thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined the

matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

ey audit matier

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of Financials assets (as described in Note 6.3 of the Ind AS financial statements)

The Company's impairment provision for
financial assets is based on the expected
credit loss (ECL) approach lald down under
'Ind A5 109 Financial Instruments'. ECL
involves an  estimation of probability-
weightad loss on the financlal Instruments
aver their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the
credit quality of its financial assets {loans and
advances). In the process, a significant
degree of judgement has been applied by the
management in respect of following matters:

a. Defining thresholds for significant
increase in credit risk ('SICR') and
"default’.

b. Grouping of loans under
homogenous pools to determine
probability of default on a collective
hasis and calculation of past default
rates.

¢. Estimation of management overlay
for macro-economic factors which
could impact the credit quality of the
loans.

d. Estimation of Josses for loan
products with no/minimal historical
defaults,

In view of the high degree of management's
judgement Involved in estimation of
impairment allowance # is considered as a
key audit matter,

e Our audit procedures included considering

the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of financial instruments and
assessing compliance with the policies in
terms of Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to various Reserve Bank
of india guldelines.

¢ Assessed the assumptions used by the

Company for grouping and staging of loan
portfolio into various categories and default
buckets and their appropriateness for
determining the probability of default (PD)
and loss-given defauit (LGD) rates.

|® Tested controls for staging of loans based on

their past-due status. Also tested samples of
stage 1 and Stage 2 loans to assess whether
any loss indicators were present requiring
them to be classified under higher stages..

» Assessed the additional considerations

applied by the management for staging of
loans as SICR or default categories in view of
Company's policy on one-time restructuring.

e Tested samples of the input data used for

determining the PD and LGD rates and
agreed the data with the underlying books
of account and records.

o  Tested assumptions used by the

management in determining the ovetlay for
macro-ecanomic factors '

e Tested the arithmetical accuracy of

computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company.

e Verified the disclosures made in the Ind AS

financial statements in respect of ECL as
required under Ind AS 107 and 109.




Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected ta be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
exprass any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informattan and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
matertally misstated. ‘

When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the ind AS Financisl
Statemerits

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policles; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materfal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management s responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management elther intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.




Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to pbtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinidn. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
ecanomic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financlal statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for onhe
resulting fromy error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under.section 143{3){i) of the Act, we are
alse responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals,

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by management. ‘

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going toncern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention In our auditor’s report to the refated disclosures in the tnd AS financial statements or,
H such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,




=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

v

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the plan'ned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in
internal contrel that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. -

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

{1} As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”) issued by the Centrl
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

{2) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

#. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and befief were netessary for the purposes of our audit;

h. In our opinion, praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Qther Comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report
are In agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;




e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
- and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164({2) of the Act;

f With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure 27;

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
reguirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given tu

us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration is not applicable.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our apinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending li‘tigétions which would impact its financial
position; ' '

(ii} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable Josses;

(i) There has been no amount which is to be transferred to investor education and protection
fumned, '

(iv)

(a)

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, nho
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company to or in any other
person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security ar the like on behaif of the Uitimate Beneficiaries; '

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other




persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Uitimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circurhstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused s to belleve that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (if) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b}
above, contain any material misstatement.

(v} The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the
compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable,

{vi) As proviso to rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
carnpany only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For DMIKH & Co

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No‘:116886W
Marﬁjlﬁ(ankani

Partner

Meimbership No.;158020 ?‘_ _
UDIN: 23158020BGUSCVS120 \%‘%’*Wwﬁﬁ
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 26,2023




ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
in the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the mambers of Clix Housing Finance Limited

{“the Company”) on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that;

(i)

(a) (A} The Companv did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment and accordingly,
reporting under clause (i)(a){A) and (i){b)of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible

Asseats.

{c) The title deeds of the Immovable properties which are “held for sale” {other than
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed
in favour of lessee) disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements are not held in the name
of the Company. Details of such assets are given below:

Description of | Gross carrying | Held in the | Whether Perfod held Reason for not
property value {in Rs | name of promoter, being held in
thousands) director or thelr name of
relative or Company
employee
Buildings 42,431* | Multiple No 0-6 months | The
(Residential horrowers Company has
Flats) [26 Mos] repossessad
| {16 Nos) 16 properties

under

SARFEASI
Act, 2002
taken as
collateral
against loans
given = to
customers,

*Gross Carrying Value — Cost to Sell = Net Carrying Value {42,431 — 6,540 = 35,891)

(d) The Company did not have any Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use
assets) during the year, hence guestion of revaluation does not arise. The Company
has not revalued its Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause {i){d} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e}

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March

31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Be

Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

nami Property




(i)’ :
{a) The Company Isin the business of non-banking financial services consequently, does not

hold any inventory. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii{a) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable,

(b} {b) The Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital limit at any point of
tirme during the year, from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of

current assets. Therefore, reporting under clause {li){b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

{iti)
{a) The Company’s principal business is to give loans and therefore, reporting under clause
(iii)(a) and (e) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable,

{b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions
of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided by

the Company during the year are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

{¢) Inrespectofloans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, we report
that the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular except for certain
instances as helow:

Outstanding of overdue loans as on March 31, 2023

Particulars ~ Days Past Due Overdue (including No. of Cases
interest) '
{Rs. in thousands)
1-30 46,811 27
31-90 ' 63,444 32
More than 90 ' 67,191 , 33
Total 1,77,446 92

{d) In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, the detalls of
amount which is overdue for more than ninety days is as below:

No. of Overdue { including | Remarks
Casas interest)
{Rs. in thousands)
33 67,191 | Reasonable steps have been taken by the
 |.Company for recovery of the principal and
interest.

(e} The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The provisions of Section 185 are not applicable to the Company as the Company has not
provided any loans to Directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested.




v)

{vi)

(Vi)

(v}

(ix)

(%)

Furthet, the provisions of Section 186 are not applicable to the Company being a Housing
Finance Company, as it is engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of

‘the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 (as amended).

Accordingly, reporting under clause (v} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cast records for any of
the products of the Company under sub-section {1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under,

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities, undisputed

statutory dues including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to It.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, provident fund, employess' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, at the

“year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became pavable.

.(b_) There are no dues with respect to GST, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

(a)

(d)

{e)

incorne tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and
cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute,

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the
books of aceount of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Cormpany has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or governmient or any government authority.

Pending utilization of the term foan for the purpose for which they were obtained, the
funds were temporarily placed in liquid investments but were ultimately utilized for the
purposa for which they were obtained.

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds
have been raised on short-term basis . :

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the
Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly reporting
under clause {ix){e) and {ix)(f} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.




(xiif}

{xiv)

(xv} (a}

{xvi)

{xvii) (a)

(b}

The Company has not raised money by way of Initial public offer/further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year, Therefore reporting under clause {x){a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year
Therefore, reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable;

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in india, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance
of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management,

No report under section 143{12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
by the auditors of the Compa ny in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this repott,

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Corapany during the year and
upto the date of this report.

It our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is hot a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause {xii) of paragraph 3
af the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the detalls have been
disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business. ‘

We have considered the Internal Audit Report of the Company issued till date, for the
perfod under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persans
connected with thers during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. .

As per the information and expianéticns provided to us and based on the overall
operations of the Company, the Company is not required to obtain registration under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act.

The Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR} from the National Housing Bank
(NHB) under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act 1987, for conducting Housing
Finance activities, ' -




{xviti)

- (xix}

{xxi)

{¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC} as defined in Core Investment

Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 {“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accerdingly, reporting under clause {xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are nat
applicable, :

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding
financial year. :

There has been no resignation of the statutory‘ auditars during the year and accordingly
reporting under clause {xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratfos, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabitities, other information accompanying the Ind AS
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based ori our examination of the eviderice supporting the assumptions, nothing has
tome to our attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilitles existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of ene year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabllities falling due within & period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable 1o the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (xx} of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

For DMKH & Co
Chartered Accountants

tCAl Firm Registration No, 116886W

Manish Kankani ;?-f.»gg % ®
i La i

Partner i o momea i b

Membership No.: 158020 5% : S

N, A
UDIN: 23158020BGUSCV9120 \lpiprsnae
Place: Mumbai e
Date: May 26, 2023



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Clix Housing Finance Limited on the nd
AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Report an the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i} of
sub-section 3 ofsection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Clix Housing
Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with aur audit of the Ind A%
financlal statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Respansibility for internal Financial Cantrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} issued by the Institute of
Charterad Accountants of India (MICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Rasponsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing spacified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financlal controls, both issuad by the ICAI, Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Gur audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financlal statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial comtrols with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

internal controls based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinien on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,




Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financfal statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
A company's internal financlal control with reference to financial statements includes those nelicies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,;(2} provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded ag necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authotisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material sffect
on the financial statements, '

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of comrols, material
misstatements due to error oi fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future perieds are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controlswith reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In-our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference 1o financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financlal
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criterla established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For DIMIKH & Cao
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No.116886W B
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Clix Houslmg Finange Lirmited
Baliucs Shast a5 21 31 March 023

{1 smaunt in 1WA thousands, exeept for sharg gata unless statad otherwiga)

Motas As g A ay
) 31 March 2073 33 March 2022
ABSETS
Flandial asets :
Cash and cash squivalents LT 12574 358,417
Bank balance other than above i 15,372 1,932
Lagng [ LA58,735 037,392
Invastmants ¥ 18,148 135,318
Othigr firanelal assets 9 213431 344,18%
Non- finaricat assats
Guregat tay assats {ne) 5,244 482
Defercnd tax assets {ret) 15,244 .
Dithar intanpliyla assats B 11,664 13,143
Other manie finaneal assets it 14,995 1g.0%0
Aggists held for sade 33891, .
Toval assety ede384,020 L8
HABIMTIES AND BOLITY,
LAABILETIES
Firiancial abifities
Payabieg 11
1} Trade Payables
a) Tetal outstanding duss of miers enterprites and small 555 470
Erierprises
b} total outstanding durs OF cratitors. other than micra RN | &7 456
etarprises and smal entarprsns '
1} Other Payables
A Tokal gulsturding duds of mitrg entarprses and smalt -
anierprisey
b tora! oursrandiog duss of oregiors othar than mlers . 18,718
antarirdses and sl enterprses
Daht Secudities 1 8,253 403,743
fareowings fother than Debl Securities) i3 308,713 1,661,857
Othier inancial fapilites 14 B3 36,167
Prowisfong 1% 8 7,636
{ither aon-fiandal tisbttilles 1% L 4,505
Taial Hebitites RLLARE 2205338
Eruity
Erputiy stiare capital 17 $40,000 550,000
Othst equity bt 47591 (2,657}
otal Equity 573944 542 475
Tota! Rabifiies and Bquity 139949 2,748,208
Signifluant aeceunting ol cey E]
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Lilw Houslng Finance Limitsd

Statement of Profit and loss for the perled anding 33 March 2023

Il ammioues In INR Ehousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwise)

Nates Year sided Yagr ended
31 Margh 2023 32 March 2032

Revenua frirm aparations
tneeastincome
Feas and comrabssion income
Nzt gain on fair valug ehanges
Net galn on dececognition of fnancta! instruments untier
amartlyed cost catenary
Fotal raverie fram apecationy

Dther Incams
Total Income

Exponsas
Finance Gosts
Fris and ompieslon gegensy
Impairsrent on fnaoclal instrumants
Employee Benefits Expesss
Amartization
Other expenses

Total Exponses

Profit before tax

Tix Expense:

{1} Gurrgnt tax

(2] Curramg b foe arlior yaars
{3 taferced tax charge / [tradit]

Frofit for tha yaar

Lther famprehensive Incoma
A lkems that will et be reclassifled to profit or loss
Rarmaasuramenis of defined banafit Bablity
Iriesmy Tax Efact
B, ltems that wilf be reclassified 1 yrofit or loss

Othar Comprahansive Incems , gt of inconss tax
Yotat Comprehengive Ingonm for the year
Exrnings per eguity share of fis. 184 each

Basle {(IHR)

Difpted {INRY

Nomital value por share (INR)

Significant accounting policies

18 161,845 297,273
20 13,186 4,858
n 3,927 8,159
86,769 104,490
07T #12,807
n 4,856 1579
215,583 415,486
23 130,249 217,393
2 4543 5,99%
25 1104 56,705
t1] 15,822 s3ay
1,479 1,228
o 19,439 53,451
218,964 387,808
38,617 26,580

pe
‘ 28,375 4,586
. t]

{16,317 .
550 15047
a1 1544
{73 -

213 1593
23,778 25581

b1
B4 045
0.54 0.4%
20,60 10.00
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£l Housing Plsancs Limited
Caxh Flow Stateruset far the yaar anded 31 Mares 2623

AN smount in INK thousends, edceEAt for shary Hates unfess stoted atharwlse}

Partleulrs Yot eaded 33 March 2023 Yoo andesf 31 March 3022
Cash flow from operating activities
Froflt nforg tax 36,817 26,580
Adustes for;
Met gain on lievalue chenges {5,237} (8,150}
Shary bysed payent 791 {81}
Pranlsion foremployes bensfit expenses 203 2,264
{mpaicmant an fingncialingtroments 71,044 56,508
Apsortization LAK 1329
tivbergss o IGOMme-tax refud {93) {12}
Interest intame on fixed degosiss {2411} (1150)
Qperating profie befare working capital chinges 95,568 0,208
Addjusted for nutehungas i warking cpitol
Deernase in Baancial sssels and other asiets TR 18481
Dacreage In nanrial fabiities ¥nd ether Hablives {34,012} (54, 768)
Taxea pale)/rafund recoived tnatl - [rRvE) 837
Net Cush gengrated fbm speroting sstiiiles 859,052 EE
Cash flonws from fnvasting acivities
Mgrgemmastl, ir utual funds i) 153,300 a2 482
Furchase of gropeety, plant dvd equipment “ {2,380)
Purshisa of Pass shrough certificates (5,318 .
Iietmaent in e deposits move than S days maturtey {13,844} {5,532}
Inverest incorie tn Bred disposits EHL. 1,150
Net Cash gandrted frowtinvesting actlvities 136,838 190,330
Cush flows frons financhig activities
Fraceeds fram Inter Carporate lose . 260,485
Repayment of Inter Cargosate Lman {LI00,0063 (200, 285]
Praceeds Fam 1o loan - 144,888
Repayment of term lan {561,854} {182, 687)
Tiovemant irs Mo Canverdlle Debentures 2,508 286437
Prapsads from Bonowlag sgeinst Secinitsed Roctiolln 281,483 -
Repayment of Borrowling egaingt Secwitied Portfolis Ry :
Nat Cash penecatad fram/fused in) fingacing acthitios {1a54,508) 3y g4z
et (decrazna) / inormave I caghand wash sguivalents (38, 750) 536,420
Coshe asd easht atjulvaiends at the beghuiog of fre year A3 A7 [183003
Cash and cagh aquivalunis gt thaynd of the year XLy bRty
Notes s
Tomponantsof cash aud cash aquivatents belense fnchide:
Butancas with hanks:
«Guttent avoaunts . FE04 53,397
~Flwed dapasits with stamurity of fess than B months LLOER 300,020
Cagl and cash aquivalents avthe nd of the yese BA&Y 35341
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Clizt Moroslng Firgnce Limited

Staterreat of Changes in Eopdry far the year endad 31 March 2033
(A amount i IR thousands, axgept for share dota unlasy statod etharwise)

A, Byuity Share Cagital

Balante as at 1 Apell 2033 Changes in Bqulty |Restated hatanze as| Changes In equity] Balance as at 31 March
Share Capitab due | atl Aprd 2022 share taplval 2833
1o priar period ditring the
arenrs curant yaar
550,000 « 880,000
Balanue a4 at 1 April 2021 Changes In Byulty | Restated bainnce as| Changes In equity] Balznca as 2% 31 March
Share Cupital dus a1 Apri 2021 share tapltaf 32
o prior period durlng tha
areirE currgnl year
530,000 - - 450,000
l. Other Sequity
Particudors Reserves and surplus Total
Share basett | Statetory rassrve | Retainad earning
payment rasarve
Balanes ot 1ot Apsdl 3022 700, 11,869 {20,197] {7,629
prpfit/iLoss) foe thie yasr - . 29,553 245,558
Qther Compretiensive Incaine for the yaar . 214 219
ESCHP cast for the yrar 791 . . Tal
Transfer cut of Reservas - 5,958 {5,856} .
Balance at 315t March 2023 1,498 | 17825 3,685 22,944
Partitulars - e Baserves and surplus Tavs
‘ Share based Statutory resanve | Ratalned sarning
payment reserve
Balance at 1st Aprll 2021 [:1:7) 6,557 {41,448) {33,904
Profitf{Lass) for tha yeat ’ . 3,047 WOLT
Other Comprehansive incomi for the year - 1,504 1,544
ESOP cost for theyewr {286} - . {280),
Transfer out of Resarves . 5812 {5.312) -
Balance at 31st March 2023 ittt 11,869 (20,187} {1,637}
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All gmount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwiss)

Corporate Information

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited is a private limited company domiéiled In India and Incorporated on 2 December 2016 under the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 with CIN-U65988DL2016PLC08791. The Company I & 100% wholly dwned subsidiary of Clix Capftal
Service Private Limited {formerly known as "GE Money Financial Services Private Limited". The Company has received certification of
registration dated 18 August 2017 from National Housing Bank ('NHE'} with registration no.08.0157.17. The Company is primarily engaged in
leriding activities. The Company's registered office is at Aggarwal Corporate Tower, Plot No, 23, 5th Floor, Govind Lal Sikka Marg, Rajendra
Place, Naw Delhi- 110008, India.

The Baard of Directars of the Company has approved a Scheme of Amalgamation {“the Schemz”) for Amalgamation with its Holding
Company, Clix Capital Services Privata Limlted. . The Scheme has been approvad by Resefve Bank of India (RBI) for the Company and Clix
Housing Finance Limlted vide thelr No Oblectlon letter dated 27 October 2022 ahd 31 January 2023 respectively. The Company will file the
Scheme with the Regional Director, Reglstrar of Companies, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, As par the Scheme, the appeinted
date for amalgamation Is proposed as 1 Aptil 2022,

(1) Basis of preparation of financial statements :

The financlal statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies {Indlan
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notifled under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) along
wlth other ralavant provisions of the Act, tHe Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Company {Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021,

(i) Basis of measureament

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis; except for financial assets and ligbilities designated at fair value
thyough profit or loss (FYTPL), all of which have bean measured at fair value, The financial statements are presented In Indlan Rupees {INR)
and all values are rounded tc the naarest thousands, except when otherwise indicated,

[iii} Presentation of finandial statement

The Company presents its balanee sheet In arder of liguldity, Financial assets and financial llabilities are generally reported gross in the
balance shest. They are only offset and reported net when the Company has an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, and the partlas also infend to settle on a net basis.

Significant accounting policias

3.1 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind A$ reguires the management to mmake judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported ameunts of revenues, expenses, assets and lishllitles and the disclosure of contingent liahilitias, at
the end of the reperting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current svents and
actions, uncertalinty shout these assumptions and éstimates could result In the outcomes requiring a materlal adjustment to the catrying
amounts of assets or liabilities i future perlods,

3.1.1 Business madel assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of principal and Interest and the business
model tast, The Company determinegs the Business model at a leval that reflects how Company's financial dssets are managed together to
achieve a partieular business objéctive, This assessment includes judgement raflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance
of the assets {s evaluated and measured including how these are managed and compensated to the managers. of the assets. The Company
meniters financial assets measured at amortised cost ot fair value through other comprehensive income that are deracognised pricr to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held, Monitoring Is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remalning financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and If it is rot appropriate whether there has baen a change In business mode! and so a
prospective change te the classification of thosa assets,




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Alf amgunt In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise}

3.1.2 Fair value of financial instrumants

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would he recelved to self an asset or pald to transfer a fiabifity In an orderly transaction
in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) vegardiess of
whether that price is directly ohservable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financlal assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derlved from active markets, they are determined using z variety of valuation
techniques that Include the use of valuation medels. The inputs to these models are taken from chservable markets where possible, but
where this Is not feasible, estimatlon is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include cansiderations of liguidity and
model inputs refated to items such as credit risk (hoth own and counterparty), funding value adjustmients, correlation and volatility.

3.1.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The company's EIR methodology, recognises Interast income / expense using a rate of retlrn that represents the bast estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected behavioural iife of loans glven / taken and recognises the effact of potertially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product iife eycle (including prepayments and penalty Interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expectedﬁhehaviour and life-cycle of the Instruments, as well
expacted changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are integral parts of the Instrument.

3,14 Impairment of financial asset

The measurernent of impairment losses across all categories of financlal assets requires judgement, In particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
incraase in gredit risk. These estimates are drivan by a number of factors, changes in which can result In different levels of allowances.

The company’s ECL calculations are cutputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choige of variable
nputs and thelr interdepandencies, Elemants of the ECL models that aré considered accounting judgements and estimates include;

I. The Company's internal medel, which assigns probabllity of default {PD),

II, The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant incregse in credit risk and-so allowances for financlal assets shauld be
measurad on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment

Ili. The segrentation of financial assets whan thelr ECL is assessed on a collective basis

IV, Develapment of ECL models, Including the various formulas and the cholce of inputs

V. Determination of assaciations betweian matroecangmic scenarlos and, economic inputs, such as unemployment lavels and collateral
values, and the effect on PDs, Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss glven default (LGD)

VI, Selection of forward-looking macrdeconomic scenarios and thelr probabliity weightings, to dertve the aconemic inputs inte the ECL
models

It has been the Company's policy o regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necassary,

3.1.5 Defined employes benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-erployment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valustions, An actuarial valuation lnvolves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit ohligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

8.1.6 Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most apprapriate valuation madel, which Is
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate alse requires determination of the mest approprlate inputs to the
valuation madel including the expected life of the share optian, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them,

3.1.7 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company cperates in a regufatory and legal environment that, by ndture, has a haightaned element of litigation risk Inherant to its
cperations. Asa result, it is invclved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings In the ordinary course of
the Company’s business,

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relatien to a specific case and considers such autflows to be
probable, the Company records a provision agairist the case, Whera the probability of outflow is considered to be remots, or probable, but a
raliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2043
{All emount In INR thousands, sxcept for share data unless stated otherwise)

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of fosses, the Company takes Inte account & number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incldents. Significant Judgemant is requirad to
conciude on these estimates.

3.1.8 Leases

The Company evaluates 'if an arrangément qualifies to be a lease a3 per the requirements of Ind A$ 116, Identification of a lease requires
slgnificant judgment. The Company uses significant Judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancetlable peried of a leass, together with both perlods covered by an
option to axtend the lease if the Company Is reasonably cartaln to exarclse that option; and perlods covered by an option to tarminate the
leass if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that eptlon. in assassing whethar the Company is reasonably certain fo exercise an
aption to extend a lease, or nat to exercise an eption to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and cireumstances that create an
aconomic Incentive Tor the Company to exercise the option to extend the leasg, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a changa in the non-canceilable period of 4 lease, The discount ratg is generaily based oft the
Incremental borrowing rate specific to the fease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar chdracteristics.

3.2 Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash bafances in bank, and highly liquid Investments with maturity period of
three manths or lass fram the date of investment,

3.3 Revenue recognition

a) Interestand similar lncome

Intsrest income, for all financial instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through ather comprehensive
income, i5 recorded using the effective tnterest rate {EIR} EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
recefpts over the expected life of the financial instrument or & shorter perlod, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset, The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the flnancial Instrument (for example, prepayment aptlons) and
includes any fees ar incremental cests that are directly attributable and are an integral part of the BiR, but not future cradit losses,

b} Foreclosure charges and other fees
Foreclosure charges and other fess which include cheque bounce charges, penal fee, lagal charges and prepayment charges ete. are
recognised as income when there s certainty regarding the receint of pavment,

¢} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Companty’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when
sharehelders approve the dividend,

3.4 Foralgn currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in indian Rupees {INR) which is also the Company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencles are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first quallfies for recognition. Income and expenses In foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction,

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and fiabilities are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchangé at the
reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monaetary Tsems that are measured in terms of historical cast in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value In a forelgn ewrrency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss artsing on translation of non-monetary fterns measured at falr value Is treated in line
with the recognitioi of the gain or loss on the change in falr value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whase fair value gain or
loss is recognized In OC| ar proflt pr loss are alse recognized in OCL or profit or loss, respectively),




Clix Houstng Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount ip INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

8.5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Intanglhle assets

PPE

PPE are statad at cost (Including Incldantal expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its worklng conditlen for its intended use)
less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributabla cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for Its Intended use. Subsequent expenditure refated to PPE Is capltalized only when it is probable that future
aconomic beneflts associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and
malntenance costs are expensed off as and when ingurred.

An itam of property, plant and equipment and any significant part inftially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
ecanomic benefits are expectad fram its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the diffarence
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset} is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible flxed assats
The Company's Intanglble assets mainly includa the value of computer software. Arr Intangible asset Is recognlsed only when its cost can be
measured reliably and it Is probable that the expected future economic beneflis that are attributable to it will flow to the company

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initlal recognition at cost. Following Inltial recognition, intanglble assets are carrled at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,

3.6 Depraclation and amaortization
Dapraciation

Owned assets

(a) Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the lease term as stated in the Jease agreement or usefu! fife of the asset whichever Is
lower.

{b} Intangible assets consisting of computer software are depreclated on a straight-ling basts over a period ¢f 5 years from the date of ready
1o use.

lc) Depreclation on other owned fixed assets ts provided on straight line method at the rates, computed based on estimated useful ifa of
those assets.as prescribed under Schedule [l to the Companies Act, 2013. Land is not depreclated.,

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

- Camputers - 3 years
- Office equipment - 5 years
- Furnlture and fixtures - 10 yeats
- Computer softwares* - 10 years

* The useful lives for Computer Software as per the prescribed Schedule |l rates under Part € of the Companies Act is 8 years. However, the
Company is taking useful life of 10 years for Computer Soffware basis the Management's internal assassment of astimate of useful ki,

The residual values, useful lives and mathods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are feviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate
3.7 Impairment of non-finaricial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviawed at zach balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceads its recoverabla amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the agsets, net selling price and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted ta their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
rlsks specific to the asset. in detarmining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impalrment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amolint of the asset over its remaining useful life.
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3.8 Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a prasent obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliabfe estimate can he mada of
the amount of the obligation.

Provistons (exeluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to thelr present value and are determined basad on the best estimate reguired
to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. if the effect of the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pra-tax rate that reflects, when approprlate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase In the
provisten due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finange cost,

3.9 Contingent liahilities and assets

The Campany does not recognize a contingent liability but disclases its existence In the financial statements. Contingent liability Is disclosed in
the case of:

- A present obilgation arising from past events, when it Is not probable that an otitflow of fesources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation _

- A presant gbligation arising from past evenis, when no reliable estimats is possible

- A possible obligation arlsing from past events, unless tha probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent liabllities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingant asséts are not recognised. A contingent asset is disclosed, as reguired by Ind AS 37, where an Inflow of econpmic
benefits Is probable.

3.10 Retirement and other employee benefits
The Company's obligation towards varlous employee benafits has been recognised as follows:

Short-term employee beneflts

All employee benefits payable/ avallablé within twelve menths of rendering the service are classified as short-tefm employee benefits.
Benefits such as safaries, wages and bonus etc., are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period tn which the employes
renders tha related service,

Defined contribution plan
Brovident fund is a defined contribution plan. The contribution towards provident fund has been deposited with Regional provident fund
commissionar and is charged to $tatement of Profit and Loss,

Defined benefit plan
The Corpany pays gratufty to employess who retire or resign afier a minimum petiod of five years of continuous service. The Compariy has
choosen not to fund the gratuity liabilities of the plan but instead carry a provision based on actuartal valuation in its bocks of accounts.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprises of actuarfat gains and losses. on benefit obligations, The Company recognizes
thase items of rameasurements immediately in other comprehensive income and all the other expenses related to defined benefit plans as
employes benefit expenses in their proflt and less account.

When the benefits of the plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed or setilement occurs, the pertion of the changed benefit related to
past service by employees, or the gain of loss on curiailment or settlement, is recognized immaédiately in the profit or loss account when the
plan amendment or when 2 curtaiiment or settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits - Compensated absences

Entitlements to annual [eave are racognised when they accrue to employees, Balance leaves, if any can he encashed at the time of
retirement/ termination of employment. Tha Company determines the lability for such accumulated leave entitlements on the basis of
actuarial valuation as atthe year end.
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3.11 Tanes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pald to the taxation authorities In
accordance with income tax Act, 1961, Income Computation and Disclosure Standards and other applicable tax laws. The tax rates and tax
laws used to eornpute the amount are those that are enacted at the reporting date,

Currant Income tax relating to tems recognisad outslde profit or loss Is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive
Incame or In equity). Current tax Itams are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either In OCl or diractly in equity.

Deferred tax

Defarred tax Is provided using the liability method on temporary differences betwaen the tax bases of assets and liabllities and thalr carrying
argunts for finahcial reporting purposes at the reporting data,

Beferred tax assets are reécognlsed for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits asjd any unused tax
losses. Defarred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agalnst which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and reduced to theé extent that it s no longer
probahle that sufficient taxable profit will bae avaliable ta allow all or part of the defarred tax asset to ba utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assasséd at each reporting date and are recoghised to tha extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits wil! allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ara measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based an tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognlsed outside profit or 1oss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or In equity). Deferfed tax Items are racognised in eorrelation te the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

befarrad tax assets and deferred tax lablltties are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relata to the same taxable antity and the same taxation authority.

3.12 Earning per share

Basie sarnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit er loss for the year attrihutakle to equity shargholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the perlod, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the
éxtant that they are entliled to participate in dividends relative to a fully pald equity share during the reporting year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or lass for the year attriiutable ta equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during tha period are adjusted for the effects of all difutive potentlal aquity shares,

3,13 Share basad payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured ai the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The falr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share based payments Is expensed on a stralght line basis over the vesting
period, hased on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reportiing period, the Campany révises its estimate of tha number of equity instruments expected te vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estlmates, if any, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulativé expenses reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Paymeants Reserve.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflacted as additional share diluticn in the computation of diluted earnings per share.
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3,14 Financial Instruments

A flnanclal Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fability or equity instrument
of another entity.

3,14.1 Financial Assets
3.14.1.1 Initial racognition and measurement

Financial assets, with the exception of loans and advances to customars, are initially racognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company becames a party to the contractual previsions of the Instrument, Leans and advances to customers are recognised when funds are
disbursed to the customars, The classification of financial instruments at inltlal recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics and
the management’s Inténtion when atquiring them. All financlal assets are recognised Initially at falr valua plus, In the case of financlal assets
not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are atributable to the acquisition of the finanglal asset,

3.14.1.2 Classification and Subsequent meastirement

For purpoeses of subsequent measurement, financia! assets are classified in four categories:
+ Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments and equity instruments at falr value through profit or loss {FVYTPL)
Debt Instryments at falr value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
Equity instrument measured at falr value throigh othar comprehansive income (FYTQC!)

3.14.1.3 Debt Instruments at amortised costs
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are mat:

i. The assetis held within a business model whose objective ls to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the
orincipal amaunt outstanding,

Business modet: The business model refiects how the Company manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, where the
Company's objective is solefy to collect the contractual cash flows from the assets, the same Is measured at amortized cost or where the
Compary’s objective Is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arlsing from the sale of assets, the same is measured at fair
value through ather comprehensive Incime (FYTCCI). If naither of these Is applicable {e.g. finandial assets are held for frading purpeses),
then the flnancial agsets are clagsified as part of ‘othér’ business model and measured at FYTPL,

8PPI: Where the business model Is to hold assets to collect and aarn contractual fash flows (L.e. measured at amortized cost), the Company
assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows. represent selaly paymants of principal and interest (the 'SPPI test'). In making this
assessiment, the Company considars whether the contractual cash flows are consistens with 2 basic lending arrangement i.e. interast Includes
only considaration for the time value of money, cradit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that Is consistent with a baslc lending.
arrangement. Where the contractual ferms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset Is classiffed and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost, as mentioned above, Is computed
using the effective interést rate methad.

Aftar initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive interest rate (EIR) methad
less impairment. Amortisad cost s caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or ¢osts that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included In interest income i the statement of profit of loss. The |osses arising from
impairment are recognised in the statemant of profit and |oss.

3.14.1.4 Debt instruments at FVQC)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classifiad as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

i, The cbjective of the business model is achieved both by coltecting contractual cash flows and selfing the financial assets,

ii. The asset’s contractual cash flows represaht SPPL

Debt instruments induded within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at sach reporting date at fair value. Falr value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive Income (OCH. Howaver, the Company recognrizes interest income,
impairment losses & reversals and forelgn exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecoghition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
_previously recagniséd In OCI is reclassifiad from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument s reported as
interast income using the EIR method. :
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3.14.1.5 Debt instrumant at FVTPL

EVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not reet the criterta for
categorization as at amortized cost er as FYTOC), Is classified as at FYTPL.

In addition, the Commpany may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost ar FVTOCI criteria, as at FYTPL.
However, such elaction s allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurament or recogniticn inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismateh’). Debt instruments included within tha FVTPL tategory are measyred at fair value with all changes recognized In the
P&L,

3.14.1,6 Equity Investments

All equity Investmants In scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at falr valua, Equity instrumeants which arg held for trading classified as at FVTPL.
Far all other equity instruments, the Company may make an Irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by- instrument basis, The classification Is made on Initial
recogiition and is Irrevocable.

I§ the company decides to classify an equity Instrument as at FVTOCI, then all falr value changes on the instrument, exciuding
dividends, aré recognized in the QCI There is ‘no recycling of the amounts from OCl to P&L, even on sale of investment. However,
the company mav transfer the cumulative main of loss within eauity.

Equity Instruments inciuded within the FVTPL category are measured #t falr value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

3.14.2 Finaricial Liabllitles
3.14.2.1 Inltial recognition and measurement

Financla! ltabilities are classifled and measured at amortisad cast br FVTPL. A financial liability fs classifled as at FYTPL if it is classified as held-
for trading or it is designated as such on initial recognition. All financial liabitities are recognised inftially. at fair valtie and, in the case of loahs
and borrowlngs and payables, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

The company’s finandial liabilities Include trade and other payables, loans and borrowlngs including bank overdrafts and derivative financial
Instruments,

3.14.2.2 Classiffeation and Subseguent measurement - Financlal liabMitles at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at falr value through prefit or less include financlal liakilities held for tratling and financiat Habilities deslgnated
upan initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Fibanclal flabilities are classifled as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includas derlvative flnancial instruments entered into by
the company that are not desi_gnated as hedging instruments in hedge refationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derlvatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging Instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised I the profit ar loss.

Finangial liabilities designated upon initlal recognition at fair valug through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recagnition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For |iabilities designated as FYTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized In Gk These galns/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company
may transfer the cumulative galn or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

3.14.2.3 Loans and borrpwings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and horrowings are subseguently measurad at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains
and fosses are recognised in profit or lass when the ilabillties are derecognised as well as through the EIR amartisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium en acquisition and fees or costs that are an lntegral part of the
EIR, The ELR amortisation is included as finance costs In the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

3.14.3 Redassification of financial assets and liabilities

The company doese't reciassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumnstances
in which the compary acquires, disposes of, er terminates a business Fne. Financial liahilities are never reclassified.
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3.14.4 Daracognition of flnancial assets and labilities
3.14.4.1 Derecognition of financlal assets due to substantlal modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financlal asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the modification of terms and canditions have been
renagotiated to the extent that, substantially, It becomes a new loan, with the differance recognlsed as a derecognition gzln or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not alrgady been recorded. If the modification doas not result In cash flows that are substantially
different, the madification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the ariginal EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment less has not already been recorded.

3.14.4.2 Deraecagnition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Aflnanclal ssset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)is derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financlat asset have expired, The Company also derecognises the financial asset If it has both transferrad the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecornition,

The Campany has transferred the financlal asset If, and only if, either;

* The Compariy has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset, o¢

* It retatns the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligatlon to pay the received cash flows In full without material delay to a third
party urider a ‘pass-through” arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to recelve the cash flows of a financial asset.
(the 'original asset"), but assumas a cohtractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the "eventual reciplents'’), when alt
of the following three conditlons are met:

« The Corapany has no obligation to pay amdunts to the evenfual recipiants unless 1t has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset,
excludirig short-term advances with the right to full recovary of the amount lent plus accrugd interest at market rates.

- The Company cannat sell or pledge the ariginal asset other than as security to the eventual reciplents,

- The Company has te remtt any cash flows 1§ collects on behalf of the eventual reciplents without materlat delay.

In addition, the Compaty is not entitied to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments In cash or cash equivalents Including interest
earned, during the period between the collectlon date and the date of required remittance to the eventual reciplents.

Atransfer only gualifies for derecognition if either:
- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewarils of the asset, or
- The Company has neither transferred nar retained substantially all the risks and rewards. of the asset,but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and ostly if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset In its entlrety to an
unrelated third party and s ableto exercise that ability unliaterally and without imiposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company Has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the visks and rewards and has retained cantrof of the assat, the
dsset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company's carntinting involvement, n which case, the Company also recognises an
associated Hability, Tha transferred asset and the associated lHability are measurad on # basls that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained. Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantea over the transferred asset Is measured at the lower of the
griginal carrylng ameunt of the asset and tha maximusn amount of consideratton the Company could be required to pay.

If continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or boih) on the transferred asset, the conttnuing involvement is
maastred at the value the Company would be required to pay upon repurchase. in the case of a written put option on an asset that is
measured at falr value, the extent of the entity’s continulng involvement is imited to the lower of the fair vaiue of the transferred asset and
the option exercise price.
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3.14.4.2 Financlal Liabillties

A financial liahliity is derecognised when the abligation under the liabillty ls discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modifled, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new liabifity. The
differance between the carrying value of the original financial iability and the consideration paid s recognised tn profit or loss.

3.15 Impairment of financlal assets

3.15.1 Overview of the ECl. prificiples

The Company Is recording the allowance far expected credit tosses for all Joans and ether debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together
with lpan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, (In this segtion all referred to as ‘financial instruments'), Equlty
Instruments ase not subject to impairment under IND AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (tha lifetims expected credit loss ar LTECL), unless
there has heen no significant Increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected
credit loss {12mECL)).

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financlal instrument that are possible within
the 12 months afterthe reporting date,

Bath LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on collective hasls, depending on the mature of the underlying portfolic of finandal
Instruments,

The Company has establlshed a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a finandal
instrument’s credit risk has increased slgnificantly since initial recognition this is further explalned in Note 36.2.

Based on the ahove process, the Company groups its loans Into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as describad below:

Stage 1: When loans are first racognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12mECLs, Stage 1 loans also Include facllities
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified fror Stage 2 or Stage 3.

Stage 2. When a loan has shown a significant Increase in credit risk since origination, the company records an allowance for
the LTECLs, Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the eredit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2,

Stage 3; Leans considered credit-impalred {(as outlinad in Note 6). The Company records an allowange for the LTECLs

For financial assets for which the company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire cutstanding amount, ora
praportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considerad a (partial) deracognition of the financal
asset,

3.15.2 The caleulation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighied scenarios and historical data to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at.an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations arg eutfined helow and the key elements are, as follows:

PD - The Probabillty of Default is an estimate of the {lkellhood of default over a giver time horitzen, A default mainly happen at a

certain tirhe over the assassed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the pertfolio.

«EAD - The Exposure at Default s an exposureg at a default date,

«.GD - The Loss Given Defauit is an estimate of the loss arising in the case whera a default oceurs at a given time. |2 is based on the diffarence
between the contractual cash flows due and thosa that the lender would expect to recaive, including from the realisation of any collateral. it
is usuallv axnressed as a percentage of the AN,

Tha maxtmum pericd for which the cradit losses are determingd is the expectad life of a financial instrument.
The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument

that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Company ¢alculates the the 12mECL allowance basad on the expectation
of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reparting date, These éxpeeted 12-manth default probabilitles are applied to a EAD and
multiplied by the expected LG,
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Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant Increase In credit risk since origination, the Company racords an allowance for the
LTECLs, The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifatime of the Instrument,

Stage 8: For loans consldersd credit-impairad {as defined In Note 6.3} , the Company recognlzas the lifetime expected credit losses for
these loans. The methot s similar to that for Stage 2 assats, with the PD set at 100%.

Loan commitments: Whan estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion of the loan
cammitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL Is ther based on the present value of the expected shartfalls in cash
flaws If the lean 15 drawn down,

For loan commiltments, the ECL Is recognised within Provisions.

3.15.3 Forwird looking information

While estimating the expected ¢redit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring In the economy and market It
aperatas in, On a periodic basls, the Company analyses if there is any relationship hetween key economic trends llke GDP, unamployment
rates, benchmark rates set by the Reserve Bank of india, inflation etc. with the estimate of PR, LGD determinad by the Company based on its
internal data, While the ihternal estimates of PD, LGN ratas by the Company may not be always reflective of such ralationships, temporary
averlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

3.,15.4 Assets held for sale
The Company’s policy is to sell the repossessed asset, Non-financial assets repossessed are transferred to assets held for sale at fair value less
cost to sell or principe eutstanding, whichever is less, at the repossession date.

3,15.5 Write-offs

Financiadt assets are written off either partialty or in their entirety only whan the Company has stopped pursulng the recovery. ¥ the amount
to be written off (s greater than the accumulated loss allowance, tha differencé is first treated as an addition to the sllowance that is then
applied against the gross tarrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to profit and loss ascount.

3,16  Falr value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair vaiue at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assef or paid to transfer a llability In an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement Is based an the prasumptlon that the fransaction to sell the assat
or transfer the liability takes place either:

in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advanzageous markes for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The falr value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumgtions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liabliity, assuming that market participants actin their economic best Interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s akility to generate economie benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selfing It to another markat participant that would Use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the croumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minirising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valuz is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised withii the falr value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 — Queted {unadjustad} market prices in active markets for idenitical assets or liabilities
Lavel 2 — Valuation tachnigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observahle

Level 3 — Valuation technigugs for which the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservahle

For assets and liabilities that are racognised in the flnancial siatements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have eecurred between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the faly
value measuremant as a whole) at the end of gach reporting perlod.
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3.17 Dividend

The Company recognlses a lability to make cash distributions to equity hoiders when the distribution Is autherised and the distribution Is no
fonger at the discration of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a llability on the data of approval by the sharehalders and
Interim dividends are recorded as a liabllity on the date of deciaratian by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.18 Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basls and provisions are made for all known losses and [abilities, The Company has also entared into
certain cost sharlng arrangements for resources shared with other entities. The costs allocated to the Company under the cost sharing
arrangements are included in the respective expenses, The costs allocated to other entities under the cost sharing afrangement are shown
as amounts recaverable from the raspective partles.

4, Recent Indian Accounting Standards / Pronouncemants
The Company has applied the following amendments for the first time for thelr annual reporting period commiencing April 1, 2022:

a) Ind AS 16~ Praperty Plart anct equipment
The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of iterns produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the
prafit or loss but dedycted from the directly attributable costs considerad as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

h) Ind AS 37 ~ Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment spacifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract!, Costs that related
directly to a contract can either be incremantat costs of fulfllling that contract {Examples would he direct labour, materlals} oran allacation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (zn example would be the aliecation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract}.

The above amendments did not have any material impact en the amounts recognized in prior periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the corrent or future pericds.

Standards issued but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {MCA), on March 31, 2023, through the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}} Amendment Rulas,
2023 amended certain existing Ind A$s on miscellaneous issues with effect from 1st April 2023. Followlng are few key amendments relevant
to the Comzanv:

i. IndAS 1~ Presentption of Financial Statements & [nd AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting
Material accounting policy information {including fecus on how an entity applied the requirements of Ind AS) shall be disclosad instead of
sighificant accounting policies as part of financial statements.

ii. Indd AS 107 — Financial Instruments; Disclosuras

Information about the measurement basis for financial instrumeants shall be disclosad as part of material accounting pelicy information,

th. Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimate and errors

Clarification on what cofistitutes an aczounting estimate previded.

Iv. Indd AS 12 - Income Taxas

This amendmant has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption sa that it does not apply to transactions that give rise. to equal

and offsetting temparary differences.

‘the Company does not expect the effect of this on the financial statemants to be material, based on preliminary evaluation.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Nates to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Allamount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 5A: Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks in current accounts 7,604 53,397
In Deposits with orlginal maturity of less than three months 1,063 300,020
‘ 8,667 353,417

Note 56: Bank balance other than above
Earmarked Balances with Bank * 15,372 1,532
15,372 1,532
Total 24,039 354,949

* Earmarked balances with banks are held zs Margin money/ are under fien. The Company has the complete beneficial

interast an the income earned from these deposits.

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balanges In Current account with:
- Scheduled banks 7,604 £3,397
-Fixed deposits with maturlty of less than 3 months 1,063 300,020
8,667 353,417




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes ta Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in iNR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 6: Loans
in Indig
At Amortised Cost
Term loans 1,068,556 2,096,138
Inter-corporate loan 90,000 .
Total {A) Gross 1,158,556 2,096,138
Less; Impairment loss aflowance ‘ (101,821) {39,006}
Total (A) Net 1,056,735 2,057,132
Dut of above
Secured by tangible assets (progerty including land and ‘
builiding) 1,068,556 2,096,138
Unsecured 50,000 -
Total (B) Gross 1,158,556 2,096,138
Less! Impairment loss allowance {101,821) (39,008)
Total (B) Net 1,056,735 2,057,132
Out of abave
Loaris in India
Publle Sector - -
Others 1,158,556 2,096,138
Total {C) Gross . 1,158,556 2,096,138
Less: Impairment loss allowance (101,821) (39,008)
Total (C) Net 1,056,735 2,057,132

Note : No Loans or Advances are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as
defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, that are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms ar period of repayments (31 March 2022 INR
Nil). _

Securitisation:

Tha Company uses securitisations as a source of finance. Such transactions generally result in the
transfer of contractual cash flows from portfolios of financial assets to holders of issued debt
securities. Securitisation has resulted in the continued recognition of the securitised assets,

The table below outlines the carrying amounts and fair values of all financlal assets transferred that
are not derecognisad in their entivety and associated liabilities,

l.oans and advances measured at amortised cost Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Carrying amount of transferred assets measured at

amaoriised cost
Carrying amount of associated liabilities 308,713 -

344,524 -

The carrying amount of above assets and liabilities is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 iiarch 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for shara data unless stated otherwise}

Note 6.3 impairment assessment

The references below show where the Company's impairment assessment and measurement approach is set ous
in these notes. It should be read in cenjunction with the Summary of significant accounting pelicies.

- Definltion of default

The Company considers a financial instrument as defaulted and classifies it as Stage 3 (credit-impalred) for ECL
calculations typically when the borrower becomes 50 days past due on contractua! payments. The Company may
also classify a loan in Stage 3 if there is significant deterioration in the loan collateral, deterioration in the financial
condition of the borrower or an assessment that adverse market conditions may have a disproportionately
detrimental effect on the lodn repayment. Thus, as a part of the qualitative assessment of whether an Instrument
is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate delay in or non repayment of the
loan. When such events accur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
botrower as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate,
Classification of accounts into stage 2 is done on a conservative basis and typically accounts where contractual
repaymehts are more than 30 days past due are classified in stage 2.

It ts the Company’s pelicy to constdar a financlal Instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3
when none of the default critéria are present. The declsion whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Staga 1 ance
cured depends on the updated credit grade once the account is cured, and whether this indicates thera has been
a significant reducétion in credit risk.

- Probabflity of default

The credit rating provided by the external rating agancies/account level delinquency/ internal matrix has been
considered while assigning Probability of Default (PD) at a portfolio level.The PDs are computed for homogenous
porifolio segments.

- Exposure at default
The outstanding balance as at the reporting date is considered as EAD by the Company. Conisidering that FD
determinad above factors in amount at default, there is rie separate requirement to estimate FAD.

- Loss given default {LGD)

The Company uses historical loss data/external agancy LGD for identified homogenous poals for the purpose of
calculating LGD. The estimated recovery cash flows are discounted such that the LGD caleutation factors in the
NPV of the recoveries,

- Significant increase in credit risk

The Company evaiuates the loans on an ongoihg basis. The Company alse assesses if there hag been a significant
increase In credit risk since the previously risk taking into consideration hoth qualitative and guantitative
information . One key factor that indicates significant increase in credit risk is when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due or where existing terms are renegotiated.




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Allamount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Onea time restructuring (OTR} of loan accounts was parmitted by RBI vide circulars dated 8 August 2020 'resolution
framewotk for COVID-19 related stress' and 'Micra, Small and Medium Entarprises {MSME) sector — Restructuting
of Advances' and eirculars dated 5 May 2021 'Resclution Framework — 2.0: Resolution of Covid-19 related stress of
Individuals and Small Businesses' and 'Resolution Framework 2.0 — Resclution of Covid-19 related stress of Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises [MSMEs)', The Company has considered OTR as an indicator of significant increase
In credit risk and accordingly classified such [oans as stage 2.

- Grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis

The Company calculates ECLs on collective basis on following asset class:-
- Housing portfolio
-Loan against property {LAP) portfollo

Note 6.4 Collateral

The Compariy holds collateral to mitigate credit fisk associated with financial assets.The main types of collateral
and the types of assets, these are assoclated with are listed in the table below. The collateral presented relates to
instruments that are maasured at amortised cost,

Particutars As at As at
' 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Residential & Non-Residentlal Properties 1,068,556 2,006,138
Total 1,068,556 2,096,138

The Company periodically monitors the market value of collateral and evaluates Its exposure and loan to value
rhetrics for high risk customers,

The Company did not hold any financlal instrument for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral
at Marceh 31, 2023, There was no change in the Company's coliateral policy or collateral quality during the period.

Refer Note 36.2.2 for risk concentration based on loan fo value (LTV}

Note 6.5 Transfer of Financial assets

Assignmeni:

During the year ended Maréh 31, 2023, the Company has sold some loans and advances measured at amortised
cost as per assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and
rewards related to these assets were transferred to the buyer, the assefs have been deracognised from the
Company’s balance sheet.

The carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost as on date of transfer during
year is INR 623,457 (31 March 2022: 454,200) and consideration received for such transfer is INR 623,457 (31
March 2022: 454,900) respectively.

MNote 6.6 Risk assessment modeal

The Company has designed and oparates its risk assessment mode! that factars in both quantitative as well as
gualitative information an the loans and the borrowers. Depending upon the nature of products, the model uses
historical empirical data to arrive at factors that are indicative of future credit risk and segments the portfolic on
the basis of combinations of these parameters into smaller homogenous portfolios from the perspective of credit
hehavior,
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Clix Hevsing Flnanca Lmitad
Notes ko Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount [n INR thousands, except forshare data Unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
31 March 2033 31 March 2022
Nate 91 Gther financial assets
EiS Recelvable 211,634 148,139
Lgss: Impalrment |oss allewanca {2,388} {778)
Security deposit 31 131
Cther financlal assets A28 573
Total 213,422 1495165
Agat Asat
31 Marsh 2023 31 March 2022
Nete 10¢ Other ngn financial assets
Prepaid expanses 790 469
Advence to suppllers 131 2,839
Balsncg with statutory/gpvernment authoritles
~GST Input cradit 14,074 4,712
Total 14,995 18,020
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note L1r Payables
Trade Payables
Total autsanding duas of Miera Enterprisas and Smal} Enterprisesy 555 470
Total autsanding dues ef Credibors other than Micro Enterpeises and Sinall 14,691 47,656
£nterorises
Giher Payables .
Tekal gutsanding cfues of Micro Enterarises and Small Enterprisest - .
Tatal outsanding dues of Creditors otherthan Micro Enterprises and - 48,748
Small Enterprisas
15,246 96,844

Alsa refer Note 58
The falowing agelng schedule s givan for trade payables due for payment

Asat 31 March 2023

Unbilled / Mot dua Outstanding for folfowing perfads from due date of pagment Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3yoars  [Mora than
3 yaars
Trade Payables |
{I1MSME * 509 45 . - - 555
{ii}Others 13,962 729 . . . 14,691
{lit} Disputed dises ~MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues - Others - R - - -
Total 14,471 775 - - - 15,246
As at 31 Mareh 2022
Unbilled / Mot dug Qutstanding for follawing pariods from. due date of payment Total
Partlculars Lass than 1 year -2 years 2-3years |Morethan
3years
Tiade Payalles
(IJMSME 470 - - . v A7
{iOthers 47,592 64 - - - 47,656
(i} Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - . - - -
Total 48,062 64 - - - 48,125

HiBased on and to the sateat of the information recelved by the Company from the suppllers regarding their status undar the Micro, Smali and tedlum Snterprises Development Act, 2006

{MSMED Act), the relevant particulars as at the yeanand are furnished below:

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Principal amount due to suppllers under MSMED Act, 45 at the year end.

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above
amount as at the yesr end

Payment matle to suppllers (other than interest} beyond the appaintad
day, during the year

interest pald ta suppliers under MSMED Act {otherthan Section 16)
Interast pald o suppliers onder MSMED Act (Settion 16}

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Adt, for payments
already made

Interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers
ynder MSMED Act

555

470




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notas to Flnanclal Statements for the year endad 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thausands, excepl for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 Margh 2022

Nota 12: Debt Securitles

{A) At Amortised Cost
Sacnrad
Mon-tonvertible debenturesg
« From Bank 406,253 403,747
406,253 403,747
[B) Out of above
Deht secyrities in India 406,253 403,747
Debt securlties outside Indla - -
446,253 403,747

# NCDs are fully secured by way of an excluslve charge over the specific asset portfolio of receivables.

{C] Terms of repayment of non covertible debenturas as #t 31 March 2023

More than 3
Original maturity of NCDs {in ho. of days) Dye within Lyear  Duelto?years  Due2to 3 years years Total
Issued at par and redgemable at par - . - - “
365 - 730 306,000 , - - - 300,000
731 - 1095 100,000 - - - 100,000
1006 - 1460 B - - - -
More than 1460 " - - - -
Total* 400,000 - - - 400,900
< {nterest rate rapges from 9.20% p.a, to 11% p.a. as 5t 31 March 2023
*INR 1,261 differenca on account of EIR adjustrent and INR (7,514) an account of Interest acerued but not due,
Terms of repayment of non coverthle debantures as at 31 March 2022

Maore than 3
Criginal maturity of NCDs |In o, of days) Dug Within year  Duelto2years  Due 2 to 3 years Years Total
{ssued at par and redeemable at par . - - - -
365-730. 3 300,000 - - 300,000
731-.1085 . 100,000 - - 100,000
1096 - 1460 i - - - -
Mora than 1460 - - ~ -
Total* - 400,000 = - 400,004

- Interest rate ranges from 9.20% p.a. 1o 10.75% p.a. a5 at 31 March 2022
* INR 3,826 diffetence on account of EIR adjustrient and INR. {7,573 on account of interest accruad but not due.
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Finandlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless statad otherwise)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 14: Other financial liabilities

Emplayee benefit payables 1,540 1,169

Inter company payables 3,226 8,372

Advances received from customer 84,358 26,626

Total 89,124 36,167
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 15: Provisians
Pravision for employee hanefits

- leave encashiment 352 552

- Gratuity payable 349 446

Impairment loss allowance an loan commitmeant - 266

Other provisions 237 1,372

Total 938 2,636
Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 16: Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable . 1,211 4,585
Total . ’ 1,211 . 4,585




Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated ctherwiss)

As @t
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Note 17: Equity Share Capital

Authorised :
550,000 550,000
55,000,000 (31 March 2022: 55,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
550,000 550,000
Issugd, Subseribed and Paid-up:
550,000 550,000
55,000,000 (31 March 2022: 55,000,000) Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
Total 550,000 550,000




Clix Houstng Fihance Limited
Notes tb Financlal Statements for the yaar ended 31 March 2023
{All amount In INR thousands, except for shidre data unless statad otherwise)

The reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the raporting perfod.

Name of tha shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares INR In GO0's No. of shares INR [n 000's
Equity Share at the heginning of period 55,000,000 550,000 55,000,000 550,000
Add; Shares lssued during the period - - - -
Equity share at the end of period 55,000,000 550,000 55,000,000 550,000

Shares held by holding Company / ultlmate holding company and/ or thelr subsiclaries/ assoclates

Nama of the shareholder As at 31 Mareh 2023 As at 31 March 2022

No. of shares % of halding No, of sharas % of holding
Holding Company
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 54,999,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%
Total 54,969,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100,00%

As per records of the Campany, Including its register of sharaholders/ members and other declarations recelvad from shareholders regarding
beneflcial interast, the above s_ha'raholdlhg represents bath legal and beneficlal ownerships of shares,

Shares held hy promoters

Nama of tha shataholder ] Asg at 31 March 2023 A5 af 31 March 2022
No., of shares % of halding Na. of shares % af holdlng

Helding Company )
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 54,999,594 100.00% 54,899,994 100.00%

Details of sharghelders holding mora than 5% shargs in the Company

Namae of tha sharehelder As at By at )

Mo, of shares % af holding No. of sharas % of holding
Clix Capital Services Private Limited 54,999,994 100.00% 54,599,994 100.00%
Total 54,999,994 100.00% 54,999,994 100.00%

A5 per records of the Company, including I8 reglstei of shareholders/ members and other dediarations recelved from shareholders ragarding beneficial Interast, the

above shareholding reprasants both legal and beneficlal ownerships of shares,

Clix Capital Services Private Limited is 3 whally owned subsidiary of Plutus Finanicials Pvt Ltd. {Mauritius)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Thie Company has enly one dass of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share, Each sharzsholder of the Company is entitled to vote in propdrtion of the
share of paideup capital of the Comtpany held by thé shargholder, Each shareholder is entitled to receive Interim dividend whan Tt s declared by the Boadd of

Diegctors. The final dividends proposed by the Board of Girectors are pald when approvad by the sharsholders at annual ganeral maeting,

In the event ot juidation, the Snarenolders of the Company are entlitled o receive the remaining assets of the Company arter discnarging all lapihities of the

Company Tn proportion to thelr shareholdings.

Aggregate number of bonus shares tssued during the perlod of five years iImmadiately preceding the raparting date

Particular As at Ag at As at . As at Asat
March 312023 iMarch 31 2022 March 312021 March 312020  March 32 2019

Equity shares allotted as fully paid Honus shares by - - - - -

capitalization of securities premium

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by . - . - -

capitalisation of general reserve

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by - - -

capitalisation of Credit balance in Statement of Prafit and

Lgss

Total - - oo - -

Aggregate number of hought hack during the perlod of five years immediataly pracuding the raporting date

Particular Asat Asat As at As at Asat
March 31 2023 ivlarch 31 2022 March 31 2001 DMarch 312020 March 31 2010

Equity shares bought back by tapitalisation of Statement of - - - - .
Profit and Loss and transferved to capital redemption
reserve (INR 10 face value of each share }

Total - - - -




)
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financlal $tatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 18: Other Equity
Share based payment reserve
Opening balahce 701 981
Compensation options granted during the year 791 (280}
Closing balance ' ' 1,492 701
Statutory reserve u/s 29C of The National Housing Bank
Act, 1087
Qpening balance 11,869 6,557
Addition during the year 5,956 5,312
Closing balance 17,825 11,865
Retained earnings
Opening balance {20,197) (41,448)
Profit for the year 25,559 25,017
~Transfer to statutory reserve {5,956) (5,312)
- Re-measurement {losses)/gains on defined benefit
plans, net of tax 219 1,544
Closing balance 3,625 {20,197)
Total 22,944 [7,627)

Share based payment reserve: The holding Company provides share based payment schemes to the
employees af the Company.Share based payment reserve is used to recognise the value of equity settled share
based payments provided to employees as a part of their remuneration,

Statutory reserve ufs 20C of The National Housing Banlc Act, 1987; Section 29C (i) of The Natlonal Mousing
Bank Act, 1987 defines that every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund
and transfer therein a sum not lass than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared. Accordingly, during the year ended 31 March
2023, The Company has transferred an arount of INR 5,956 (31 March 2022: INR 5,312) to the Reserve in
terms af Section 29C of the National Housing Bank (“NHB"} Act. 1987,

Retained earnings: These represent the surpius in the profit and loss account and is free for distribution of
dividend.




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 18: Interest Income :
On finamefel assets megsured ot Amortised cost
Interest income on
- Loans 158,508 297,272
- Inter-corporate Loan 4,337 -
Total 162,845 297,272
Year ended Yaar ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 20: Fees and commission income
Application and cther fees 57 2,532
Other charges 12,109 2,354
Total 12,166 4,886
Mote 20.1: Revenue from contracts with customers
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Type of sarvices or service
Ona Time application and other fess 57 2,532
Other Charges 12,109 2,354
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 12,166 4,886
Geographical markets
Indta 12,186 4,886
Qutside Indla - -
Total Revente from Contracts with Customers 12,166 4,886
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferrad over time 12,166 4,886
Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 12,166 4,886

Information about Company's performance obligations

The Performanace ebiigation in regards of arrangements where the above fees is charged per transaction executed

is recognised at peint in time when transaction is executed.

Year endad Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 21: Net gain/ (Joss) on fair value changes
1A} Nat gain/ {loss) on financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss
{i) On trading portfalio
- investmeants 8,937 6,159
Total Net gain on financial instruments 8,937 6,159
(B}Fair Value changes: N
-Realised 9,769 5,140
-Unrealised -MTM gain/{loss) {832} 1,015
Total Net gain on fair value changes(A) to tally with {8) 8,937 6,159
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 22: Other income
interest income
- on fixed deposits 2,611 1,150
- ori income tax refund 93 12
Miscellaneous Income 2,162 517
Total 4,866 1,679




Clix Housing Financa Limited )
Notas to Financial Statements for the year endad 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thougands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Year ended Year endad
31 March 2023 31 Margh 2022
Note 23: Finance Costs
At amortised cost
Interast on horrowings {including debt securities)
- Terri loans from banks 50,347 10,826
- Tarm loans from Fls - 52,117
- Bank gverdraft - 13,961
- Non convertible debentures 43,480 26,132
- Borrowing agalnst Securitisad Portfolio 15,376 -
- [nter-gorporate loans 21033 114,257
Bank chargas 103 100
Total 130,339 217,393
Year ended Year ended
31, March 2073 31 March 2022
Nota 24; Fees and commisslon expense
Fees and commissian expenge A 4,843 5,991,
4,843 5,991
Year andad Yaar ended

31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

Note 25: Impairment on financial instrumaents
At omortisad cost

ECL on lodn asseté 52,815 11,150
ECL on loan assets adjusted agalnst Interest Income on Stage Floans® {1,966} , -
ECL on Loan Commitment (2a6) {236}
Bad debt wiltten off 8,872 45,272
ECL on other financial assets !
Tota! NO—
* relating 1o interest on credlt Impairad assats, which is netted off from Intergst income in accordante wi
Instruments.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2042
Note 26: Employee Benafits Expenses
Salaries and wages 10,073 50,853
Contribution to provident and ather funds {refer note 31) 855 3,576
Share Based Payments to employees 791 {280)
Staff welfare expenses 103 78
Total 11,822 53,027
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 27: Othet expenses
Rent 357 26
Printing & stationary a6 101
Rates and taxes 32 514
Repairs and maintenance pas 23,341
Insurance 404 1,805
Travelling and conveyance 1,155 1,591
Fostage, telagrams and telephone 20 44
Legaland professional fees * 14,408 18,863
Outsourced sarvice costs 2,864 6,718
Advertisenyent and sales promotion 104 294
Miscelianeous 8 164
Total 19,433 53;461

*1ggal and professional charges includes auditors remuneration {exeluding goods and sesvice tax) comprises the following:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2623

Year ended
31 March 2022

As guditors:
Audlt fee

Statutory audit

Limited review

-Tak audit
{n other capacity:
Other services [certification fees)
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

235 400
E1R3 160
W 70
40 120
7 -
727 750
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Clix Housing Finance tmited
MNotes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amount in INR thousends, axcant for share data unlass stated otharwise)

Nota 281 Income Tax
Current tax

[} The components of Income tax axpense far the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

Profit o loss secifon Year ended 32 Year ended
Mareh 2023 34 March 2022
Currapt ingome tax:
Current [ncome tax charge 23,378 1,586
Adjuatments for earlier years - 77
Deferrad tax:
Relating ta origiation and reversal of temperary differences (13,960} +
Bdjustiants In respect of Defarred tax recagnised far pravious year [2,357) -
Income tax expensa repartad fn the statement of profl} or loss 7087 1663
Currant tax 23,375 1663
Defarred tax {16,317) .
[li) Othar comprenensive fncome section Year eided 31 Yaar ancled

Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Currant income taxt

Relnting to orfgiation and reversal of temporary diferancas 73 -
{ncome tax expense reported In the other comprahensive section 73 v
Incoime tax expense reperted i the statemant of profit and foss 7,430 1,669

[li1y Reeanclfation of tax akpanse and the accounting profit multiplied by Intia’s domastic tax rate for 34 March 2023 &
31 March 2032

Fartieulaes Yaor ended 31 Yaer endad
March 2073 34 Margh 3023,
prefitfiioss) befora tad 35,816 26,680
Indian statutory Income tax rate 5.17% WAT%
Tax at applicabie statutory incorma tax rate (A) 8216 6,715
Adlustmént for earlier yeirs(B) - 77
Non-deductible expensas [C) 199 {7y
{mpact dus to non refognistion of D74 on timing fems (0] {2357 A.058)
tncome e expense regartedin the profik or loss section (A+BACID) 7,087 1663
Qther Camprehansive Income 292 1,544
Tax at statutory Incarme tax tate (£ ) 3 389
Impactdue to nan resopnitlon of BTA on timing differsnce [F) - {383}
Tax impact reportad on Other Comprehengive Income (FH) ' 73 "
Cizferred Tax
Deferred Tax

The following table shows defarred tax recordad Inthe balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expanse:

Ooferred tax assals Defarred tax Netdeferred  Income statement [4]w]
liahility tax asset /
{irabllities)
Asat Asat Asat Year endert Year ended
31 March 2023 M March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Other Intanglble Assets - {1,824) [1,824) {1,824} “
£CL on Loar and advances/ Investment/ Loan commitmant 24,991 - 24,991 24,801 -
frovislon for expense / 438 Disallowanse 1,229 g 1,229 1,229 -
Othars - (61} {61) {81} -
Unamortised cost {net of unamortised fees) . : - {8,091} {8,001) [8,004) -
Remezsurement of defined benefitiiability - - - 73 173)
26,220 19,977) 16,244 16,317 {73)
Defarred fax assaks Defarred tox Nstdeferred  |icome statement old]
fabllity tax assat /
{liabilitles}
As at Asat Asat Year ended Yaar ended
31 March 2022 Bl March 2022 31March2022 31 Morch 2002 31 March 2022

Other Intangible Assats - . .

ECL on Loan and advancasf Investment/ Loan commitment - - .
Provision for expsnse 7/ 43P Disatlowance - - .
438 Disallowance . “ .
Unsbsorbad lass . - .
Others - . .

Unainortlsed gost {nel of uramortizsad fasas) - - -
Rempasuremant of definad benefitfiability - - .




Nakea 28: Earning per share
Basle aarninds por share {EP5} s calculated by dividing tha nat proflt for the year attributables fo aquity holders.of the Company by tha welaf:tad avarage number of equity shares
autstensing during the vear,

Dituted EPS is.caleulatad by dividing the nst profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the vialghted everage number qf equity shares outstanding durfng the year plus the
walgltted average numbar of aduity sharas that would be issued onthe conversian afall the dilutive potenial erdinary shares Inte ordinary sharas,

Parlod gnded Periad endad
}arch 34, 2023, March 81,2022

Fallawlng reflacts the profit and shara data used in EPS computations:

Basic

Welghted average number of aquity shares for computation of Basle EPS. {INR

in000's) 55,000 55,000
fat-profit for calewlation of bagie EPS {INR In 00D's) ) 29,559 25,017
Baslc earning per share 0.54 .45
Dilutad

Wafghted average surmber of aquity shares far computation of Diluted EPS

{INR In 900's) 55,000 58,000
Mat proflt for calculation of Diluted EPS {INX I 000's) 29,554 25,017
Diluted earning per shars 6.5 04
Nemal value of equity shares {In [NR) 10,00 10.00

Reconclliation. of weighted average number of equity shares for the year anded 31 March 2023 for basls and dlluted
earnings per share:

Particulars Weightad average no, of shares

Baslc Diluted
Equity shares of face volue of INR 10 per share
QOpening 55,000 55,000
Adéltlons - -
Clashg 55,060 55,000

fecongllistion of waighted average number of equily shares for the year ended 31 March 2022 for basic and diluted esimiigs pet share:

Particilars Waelghted avarage no, of sharas

Basic Dljuted
Equity shares of face valug of INR 10 per share
Qpening 55,000 58,000
Additions - -
Cloging 53,000 $5,000
Note 30; Segment information .

Tha Company’s primary busioess segment Is raflected based an the principal buslness cared cut, ie, Housing Flnande. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting Is
required to be made in the Mnandiel statemants of the Companiy. The Company eperates principally withie Indla antl does not have operatlons in econamic envirenmeants with differant
risks and returns; henca, It [s conslderad operating i single geographical segment,
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Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Note 32: Contingent liabilities, commitments
A) Contingent iiabilities
There Is no contingent liability as at year ended 31 March 2023 {31 March 2022 : Nfi}

B} Commitment

The Comgpeny has a commitment of Nil {31 March 2022 INR 53,109} towards undrawn loan sanctions,
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Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financlal Statamants for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amaunt In INR thausands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Mote 33; Relatad Party Disclosures

As per Ind AS 22, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are glven helow,

Llst of related partias where contral exlsta and related parties with whom transactions hava taken place and relstionships:

Particulars

Clix Capital Services Private Limitad
Clix Analytics Private Limited {under iquldation w.a.f, 23 August 2021)
clix Loans Private Lirnited {Liquidated w.e.f. 2§ Novamber 2021}

Key Managerial persennel

Aparna Blihany (from 12 Decernber 2027)
Rashiml Méhanty (Il 21 Geraker 2022}
Amiit Kumar Jain [from 12 November 2021)
Alka Yaday {till 13 January 2023)*

Relationship

Halding Company
Fellow Subslaiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Whele-tima divestor
Whole-time director

chief Fnancls] ©fficer {CFO)
Company Secratary

*Tha full ime Company: Secretary af the Company {C5) resigried during the year and the managément Is in the' process.of filling the-vacancy at the earkest,

Ir The nature and volume of transactions carried out with the above relsted parties In the ordinary course of businass are as follows !

1, Rer tlonh ta Key M ial

Short Tarm Emgployee Beneflts
Share based Payments

Year ended Year endad
31 Marcl 2023 81 March 2022
5,225 1,512
79 488
6,018 1585

The: ramuneratton given to key mianagerial personnel dees not Include the pravisions made for gratulty and leave benafit, a5 they are detormined en actuarlal Hasls far the Company as a

whole,
Ne remuneration has bean paid by the Company te tts directors during the year. {2022: Nil)

2. Other Transactlons

Particufars

Interast on Inter Corporate Loans
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Proceeds from Transfer of Financial assets (assignment]
Clix Capital Sarvices Private Limited

Amount received on behalf of the company
Clix Capltal Services Privata Limited

Allorations made
Clix Capltal Services Privata Limited

Allocations received
Clix Capltal Services Privata Limited

Amaunt Paid on hehaif of the Company.
Cllx capltal Service Privats Limited

Expanse towards share based payment schemes of Holding Company
Clf capital Service Private Limited

Intar Corporate losns
Takan
Cllx Capltal Service Private Limited

Repaid )
Clix Gapital Service. rivate Limitad

Year andad 31 March 2023 Year gnded 51 March 2022

Arnount recelved Amountpaid | Amountrecelved | Amoynt paid
4,337 11,083 - 134,257

" - 409,410 -

3,500 - - -

- - 8,508 -
. - . 47,559
- 300 - 1,795

- 791 _280 M

30,000 100,000 250,300 -
16,000 1,130,000 - 200,300

Balanca shaet -outstanding balances

Partleulars : 31 March 223 31 March 2022

Amgunts Payable

Inter Corposate Joans

Clix Capital Services Private Limitad - 1,180,000

Inter campany-payables

Clix Capital Services Private Elmited 3,226 8,372
3226 1,108,372

Amounts Raceivable
Inter Corparata lnans
Clix Capital Services Private Limited

B et B ==

90,000 b

80,0048 -




Clix Houslng Finance Limited
Notes te Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwise)

Note 34: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capltal management, capltal includes lssuéd equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary abjective of the Company’s capltal management is safety and. security of
share capital and maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capial structure in light of changes in economic conditlons and the requirements of the financlal covenants.
The company monltors capitai using a gearing ratio, which Is total debt divided by net worth,

Debt to net warth ratic
{INR in thousands)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Debts 714,966 2,065,604
Net worth 572,944 547,373
Debt to Net woth (times) 1,25 3.81

in order to achleve this overall objectlve, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that It mests financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define. capital structure requizernents. Breaches in meeting the
financtal covenants would permit the lender to immediately call loans and borrowings, There hava been no breaches In the financial
covenants ¢f any Interast-hearing loans and borrowing in the current period,

No changes were made in the objsctives, pallcies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022,




Clix Housing Finange Limited _
Notes to Financlal $tatements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All arheunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

35 Fair value measurement

35.1 Valuation principles
Fair value is the prica that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal
{or mast advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly/ Indirectly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue,

In order te show how fair values have been darived, financlal instrumants are tlassified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniguas,

35,2 Valuation governance
The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to
ensure appropriate safeguards ara in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product Initlatives {(Including their valuation
methodologles) are subject to appravals by Asset Liability Cornmittee (ALCO) which shall be reported to the Board of Diractor, The
raspensibility of ongoing measurement resides with business units . Once submitted, fair value estimates are alsa reviewed and
challenged by the Risk and Finance functions.

35.3 Assets aind Kabilities by falr value hierarchy
The company's invastment in Mutual Fund 's the only financial asset measured at fair value through Proflt & Loss, The fair value of
units held in mutual funds are measured based on thelr published net asset value [NAV) taking inte account redemption and/or any
other restrictions, Such instryments are classifled under Level 1, Fair value of such investments held at 31 March 23 is INR 10,875
{31 March 2022: INR 155,318 ),

35.4 Valuation techniques

Mutual funds )
Unfts held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking Into account redemption and/or other
réstrictions,

35.5 Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Loans - Most of the [oans are repriced frequently, with interest rate of loans reflecting current market pricing. Hence carrying value
of loans is deemed to be equivalant of fair value.

Borrowings and debt sacurities -

- Fair value of fixed rate borrowings is detemined by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using current market
intarest rate charged for similar new borrowing and carrying value of such borrowing approximates fair value at financial statement
level.

Other Financial Assets and Llabllitles - The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, othér financial assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrylng amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these
Instruments.
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36.2.1

Clix Housing Finance Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{(All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Risk Management

Introductlon and risk profile

Company has operatlons In India. Whilst risk 1s inherent In the Cormpany’s activities, it is managed through an Integrated risk management
framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and menitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critlcal to the Company's continuing profitability and each individual within the Company Is accountable for the risk
exposuras relating to his or her responsibilities. The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, markat risk and intgrest rate risk. It is
also subjact fo varlous operating and business risks.

Risk managentent struture and policies

The Board of Birectors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk managemant strategles and
principles. The Risk Management Commlttee has thé overall respensibility for the development of the risk stratagy and Implementing
principles, frameworks, policles and lmits. The Risk Management Cammiittee Is responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring
risk levels and regorts to the Board.

Tha Risk Managerment Unit Is responsible for implemanting and maintalning risk related procedures to ensure an independent control
process is maintained. The unit works closely with and reports te the Risk Management Committee, to ensure that procedures are
compliant with the overall framework,

The Unit is also responsikle for manitorlng compliance with risk principles, policiés and limits acress the Company. Bach busiriess group
has Its own unit which is responsible for the control of risks, including monttoring the actual risk of exposures agalnst authorised limits and
the assessment of risks of new products and structured transactions. The Company’s Treasury Is responsible for managing its assets and
liabllitles and the overall firanclal structure, [t is also primarily responsible for the funding and liquidity risks of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will lncur a loss because Its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligatiens. The Company manages and controls credit risk by settlng fimits on the amount of fisk it i willing to accept for individual
counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and hy monitoring exposures In relation to such Bmits, Cradit risk is
monitored by the credit risk departinént of the Company's independent Risk mangameant Unit. ft s their responsibility to review and
manage credit risk. The Company assesses the ¢redit quality of all financial instruments that are sublect to credit risk.

Expasure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximuim credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was INR 1,374,244
and INR 2,246,081 as of 31 March 2023-and 31 March 2022 respectively, being the total of the carryirig amount of loan balances and other
financial assets.




Clix Hous!ng Financa Limitad
Notes to Financial Stataments for the yebr ended 31 March 2023
{All amaunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

35.2.2 Analysis of rlsk concentration

Tha Company's concentrations of risk are managed based on Lean to value (LTV) segregation as well as the purpose of loan Le. whare It is a loan far house
purchase or [pan again property for business purposes, The following tables stratlty credit sxpastres from lozns te customers by rahges of [oan-to-value [LTV}
ratto and on product basis. LTV i3 calcwlatad as the ratio of gross amount of the {oan - or the amount committad for loan eommitmants - to the value of the
collateral, The valug of the collaterai for loans is based on collateral valie at origination.

31 March 2023
Laans t customers:

LTV wise hifurcation:

LTV bucket Stage 1 Stapo Stage 3 Amaynt
0%-40% 146,553 16,158 387 163,098
More thap 40%- upte 60% 227,227 21,633 7,292 356,182
More than 60%- upte 20% 452,273 61,680 56,063 570,016
Mere than B0% 75,489 352 3,449 79,290
Total 901,542 99,823 67,191 1,068,555
*Excluding Intercorporate Loan INR 80,000
Customer profile
Customer profila Stage 1* Stage2 Stage 3 Amaount
Housing loan 520,974 72,635 34,736 628,405
Loan against property 380,568 27,138 32,385 440,151
Total 201,542 99,823 67,191 1,068,555
*Excluding Intercorporate Loan INR 99,000
Loaa Cammiiments:
LTV wise blfurcation:
LTV bucket Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Amount
0%-40% - B N .
Mare than 40%- upto 60% - - - -
Mare than 80%-upto 80% - - - .
More thar 50% - - . B
Total - : - -
Customar prafile:
Custorter prafiie Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Amount
Houslng loan -~ - - -
Loar: ggainst property - - - -
Total - - - -
31 March 2022
Laans to customers:
LTV wise hifurcation:
LTV hucket Stage 1 Stage? Staga3 Amount
0%-40% 262,981 32,525 5,207 300,713
Morg than 40%- upto 0% 441,075 46,735 20,556 508,356
More than 60%- upto 80% 1,035,319 92,075 31,339 1,158,726
Morg than 80% 102,164 17,838 8,333 128,333
Total 1,841,539 189,173 } 65,426 2,096,138
Customer proflle
Customer proflle Stags 1 Stage? Stags 3 Amount
Housing loan 1,244,010 131,744 37,294 1,413,048
Loan agalnst proparty 592,529 57,429 28,132 683,080
Tota! 1,841,539 139,173 65,426 2,006,138
Loan Commitments:
LTV wise bifurcation:
LTV bucket Stage1 Stage2 Stage 3 Amaunt
0%-40% 15370 - - 15,370
More than 40%- upto 60% 25,559 - - 25,558
More than 60%- upto 80% 11,857 - - 11,957
Mere than 80% 223 - - 223
Total 53,109 - - 53,109
Customer praflle:
Customer profile Stage 1 Staga 2 Staged Amonnt
Hewsing lean 38,287 - - 38,287
Loan against property 14,822 - - 14,322
Tatal 52,109 - - 53,103
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36.4

36.4.1

Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial $tatements for the yéar ended 31 March 2023

{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwisa)

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumant will fluctuate because of changes in market
factors. Such changes In the values of financlal instruments may resalt from changes in the interest rates, credis, liquidity and other
markat changes. The Company's exposure te market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk.

interest Rate Risk

The company is subject to Interest rate risk, primarily since It lends to customers at rates and for maturity periods that may differ
from funding sources. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyend control, Incuding the monetary policies of of the
Raserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector in Indla, domestic and International econarmic and political conditlons,
inflation and other factors, In order to manage interest rate risk, the company seek to optimize borrowing profile batween short-
tern and long-term loans, The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising options te minimize cost
and maximize stability of funds, Assets and liabilities are catsgorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset
Liability Management Committee supervise an interast rate sensitlvity report perlodically for assessment of Interest rate risks.

Tha company mitigates Its interast rate risk by keeping a balanced portfollo of flxed and varlable rate loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate sansitivity

The fallowing table demonstrates the sensifivity to a reasanably possible changs In Interest rates (all other varlables heing constant)

cof tha Company’s statement of profit and loss:

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
. . Effect.on Profit ) Effect on Profit
Particulars Basls Points befare ta Basts Points before tax
Loans
Increase in basis points 50 4,275 50 7,591
Decrease in basis points -50 {4,275) -50 {7,591)
Year endad 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
] . Effect on Profit Effect on Profit
Particulars Basis Points before tax Basis Polnts before tax
Borrowings
Increass in basis points 50 - 50 (7,250}
Dacrease in basis points -50 - -50 7,250
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
particul Basis Point Effect on Profit Basls Polnt Effect on Profit
articulars asis Points hefora tax asls Points before tax |
Investment in units of Mutual Funds !
Increase in basis polnts 50 54 50 777
[yacreass in basis points -50 {54) -50 {777




Clix Housing Finance Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amount in INR thousands, except for share data unlass stated otherwise)

Note 37 ; Maturity analysis of assets and Nabilities
The table below shows contractual maturity profile of carrying value of assets and liabilities:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Assets Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
months months months manths
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,667 8,667 353,417 353,417
Bark balanee other than inciuded in above 15,372 15,372 1,532 1,532
Loans 113,040 943,695 1,056,735 86,672 1,870,460 2,057,132
investrents 16,150 16,190 155,318 . 155,318
Other financlal asséts 22,300 191,122 213,422 15,673 133,492 149,165
Non-financial Assets
Currant tax asset - 5,249 5,249 - 482 482
Deffered Tax Assets 16,244 16,244
{ther intangible assets - 11,664 11,664 - 13,143 13,143
Other Non financial assets 14,577 418 14,995 18,020 - 18,020
Asset held for sale 35,891 - 35,891 - -
Total Assets 226,037 1,168,392 1,394,429 630,632 2,117,577 2,748,209
LIABILITIES
Financial Liahilities
I} Tracle Payables
a).TotaI outstaxjdmg due.s of micra 555 N 555 470 470
enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than miero enterprises 14,691 - 14,691 47,656 47,656
and small enterpiises
I} Other Payables
a) Total utstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small anterprisés - - - -
b) total ouistanding dues of
creditars other than micro entarprises - - - 48,718 - 48,718
and small enterprises
Debt Sacuritles 406,253 406,253 - £03,747 403,747
Borrowings {Other thar debt securities) 3926 304,787 308,713 185,613 1,476,244 1,661,857
Other financial liabilities{ta be specified) 89,124 - 89,124 36,167 - 36,167
Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions 189 749 938 281 2,355 2,636
Other Non-financial Liahilities 1,211 - 1,211 4,585 - 4,585
Total liabilities 515,948 305,536 821,485 323,490 1,882,346 2,205 836
Net (289,912) 852,856 572,944 307,142 235,231 542,373
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Clix Housing Finance lLimlted
Notes to Finangial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamount In INR thousands, excapt for share data uniless stated otherwise)

Note 40 Public Disclosure art Liquidity Risk as per Liquidity Risk Managemant Framework under Para 154 of the Master Diraction - Non-Banking Flnanglal
Company - Systamically Important Non-Deposit taking Campany-and Depasit taking Cornpany [Reserve Bank) Dlrections, 2016 dated September 01, 2016 fssued by
the Reserve Bank of Indla and updated fram time to time for Clix Housing Finance Ltd as of March 31, 2023

(i Funding Concentration based on sigalficant counterparty (hoth depasits and botrowlings):

Nuntber of Significant " 9 " ) % of Total
% of Total Depnsits
Counterparties* Amount* (INR Cr| ot Tatal bepo Liakilities
[ 71.50 NA B7%

*Significant counterparty is as defined In RBI Circular RBI/2018-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.Ne,102/03,10,001/2013-20 dated 4 Nov 2019 on Liguldity Risk
Management Framewark for Non Banking Financlal Companles and Gore Investment Companies. Funding concentration based on significant counterparty has
heen computed using latest benefictary position instead of ariginal subscribers.

(i} Top 20 lerge deposits (amount and % of total deposits);
Not Appilcable,

{iil) Total of top 10 borrowings (amount and % of tota) barrowings)

I Amount(iNRCY | % of Total Borrowlngs |
f 71.50 [ 100% |

Funding cancentration baset on signiflcant counterparty has been computed using latast beneficlary position instead of original subscribers.

{iv) Funding Concentration based on signifleant instrument® / product:. '

: % of Total

Sr. No, Name of the instrument/product Amount (iNR Cr) Liabilities
1 Non-Convertlble Debantures 40,63 48%
2 Other Securitization Liabllities 30.87 38%

*Signfficant Instrument/product Is 25 definad in RBI Circular RE/2019-20/88 DORNBFE {PD) CC.Np, 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Novamber 2019 an Liquldity
Risk Management Framawerk for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companles.

{v] Stock Ratlos:

| Sr.No. Particulars % of Tatal Publlc Funds % of Totai Liabilities % of Total Asseis
1 Commercial papers - - "~
3 Non-converitble debenturas {original ) :
maturity of less than one yaat] i
3 Other short-term flabllitles# 3% 63% 37%

# Qther Short Tarm Liabilities irciudas advance received from customers

Total Ltabliities are excluding equity share capltal and ather equity
Public funds are considerad as total of borrowings

i) Institurional set-ug for liguidity risk managemant:

The Board of Diréctors has the overall responsibility for establishing the risk management, frarhewark for the Company. The Board, in turn has established an
ALM Committes [ALCO) for evaluating, monitoring, and raviewing liguidity and interest rate risk arising In the Company on both sidas of the Balance sheet. The
Board based on recommeandations from the ALCO has prescribed policies and the risk limits forthe management of liquidity risk,

ALCO committes is responsibie for managing the risks arising out of Assat Liability mismatches consistent with the regulatory requirements and internal risk
tolerances established by the Board. Amongst other responsibilitias, ALCO has been empowsred to decide the funding mix for the Company In llght of the
future business strategy and prevailing market conditions, ALEQ committae is conducted at fedst once in a quarier and the ALCO minutes are raviewed by the
Board from time to time,




Clix Housing Fnance Limited

Nates to Financlal Statamants for the year endad 31 Margh 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherw(se)

- Note 41. Details of resolution plan implemented under the Resolution framewerk for COVID-19 related stress as per RBI circular dated 08 August 2020 {Resalution Framework - 1.0) and
05 May 2021 (Resolution Frameweork 2,0} as at 31 March 2023 are givan below:

{INR In thausands)

() (B), {c] (D) {€)

Exposure to accounts classified|Of (A}, aggregate debt|Of (&) amount written off|Of (A} amount pald by|Exposure to  accounts

as Standard consequent tofthat slpped Into MWPA[durlng the  half-year|[the horrowars during theclassiflied  as  Standard

Implementation of reselutlon|during the half-year ended|ended 31 March 2023 half-yaar  ended  31|censequent o)
Type of horrower plan — Posltion as at 30|31 March 2023 March 2023 Implementation of|

Septamber 2022 {A} resolutlon plan ~ Position

a5 at 31 March 2023

Parsonal Loans 49,306 952 2,327 45,027
Corporate parsons® - - - -
Of which, MSHES - - - -
Others - - - -
Total 49,306 952 - 2,327 45,027
* As deflned [n Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
Nate 42, Change In llabillties arfsing from financing activitles
Partlculars 1 Aprll 2022 Cash flows Changes In fair values Exchange difference Others* 31 March 2023
Debt securitias 403,747 - - - 2,506 406,253
Borrowings other than debt secutitles 1,661,857 -1,358,110 - - 4,966 308,713
Total Habllities from f activitles 2,065,604 {1,358,110} - - 7,472 714,966
Particulars 1 April 2021 Cash flows Changes in fair values Exchange difference Othars* 31 March 2022
Debt securities 89,737 300,000 - - 4,010 403,747
Borrowings othar than dabt securities” 1,644,710 13,750 - - 3,397 1,661,857
Total liabilities from financling activities 1,744,447 313,750 - - 7,407 2,065,604

* Others column Includes amortisation of transaction cost and interest accrued but not due.
# Excluding bank overdraft which is included In cash and cash equivalents far statement of cash flow.

Note 43. Corporate soclat responsiblity

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company Is not required ta incur any expendlture in respect of corporate social raspensibility durlng the year ended 31 March 2023, (3£ March 2022: NIl

Note 44. Expendlture in farelgn currency

The company has not Incurred any expenditure in foreign currency durlng current year and previous yesr,

Note 45. Un-hedged forefgn currency exposure ,
The Company’s exposure in respect of forelgn currency denominated assets & llabllities {trade receivable & trade payables} not hedged as at 31 March 2023 by derivative instruments or otherwise {31 March

2022: Nil)

Note 46 : At the year end, the Company did not hava any long-term contracts Including derlvatives contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

Note 47 : Title deeds of immgvable propertles not held In name of the Company
erties held In the name of the company except for below;

Thers are no title deeds of immovable proj

Relevant [ine item In the Balance sheet

Descriptlon of Item of property

Net Carrying Value*

Title Deeds held in name
of

Whether title deed
holder is promoter,
director or velative of
promoter/directar or
employes of
promoter/directar

Asset held for sale

Collateral properties against
loans glven

35,891

Respective barrowers

Property held since which
date

Reason for nat helng
held in the name of the
company

No

April 22 - March 23

Possesslon of assets
taken under under
Securit/satlon and
Racanstruction of
Financlzl Assets and
Enforcement of
Securlties interest Act,

a0 faganraecm

*Grass carrylng value [NR 42,431,

Note 48 ; Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invasted in Crypto currency or Virtual currency durlng the financlal years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note 49 : Detalls of benami property hekd

No proceedings have been Initfated or pending against the Company far holding any benami property under the Banam| Transactions {Prohibitlon) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988} and rules made thereunder in the
financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Nota 50: wilful defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financia| institution or other lender (1 the financial vears ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Note 51: Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companles {ROC}
All charges or satisfactlon are registered with ROC within the statutory period for the financial years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. No charges or satisfactions are yet to be registered with RGC

beyond the statutory period.
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Cilx Heusing Finance Private Limitad

Annaxure 1 to Notes to financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in INR thoysands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)
Disclosures required by Natianal Housing Bank

Minimum disclosures

The following additional disclosures have been given as per the Master Direction Non-Banking Financlal Cempany - Housing

Finance Campany {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting pelicies regarding key areas of aperations are disclosed as Note 3 of Accounting policy to the Standalone Financlal

Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023,

Pisclasura:
Capital
Particulars Asat As at
: ) 31-03-2023 31-08-2002
) |CRAR [%) 34.91% 26.17%
lif  [CRAR-Tler [capital {%) 33.66% 25.54%
it} [CRAR - Tier il capital {%) 1.25% 0.63%
ivi  |Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-)t captal - -
vl [Amount ralsed by lssue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -
Reserve Fund ufs 29C of NHB Act, 1987
Particulars As at Asat
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Balanee at the beginning of the year
a)  Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 11,869 6,557
b} Amocunt of speclal reserve u/s 36(1){viiljof Income Tax Aet, 1961 - .
taken Into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
¢} Total - -
Additlan / Appropriation / Withdeawal during the year
Add:
al Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHEB Act, 1987 5,956 5,312
by Amount of speclal reserve u/s 36{1){viii) of Incomé Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken into accoynt for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Saction 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Less:
al Amount approprlated from the Statutory Reserve u/fs 29C of - -
the NHB Act, 1987
¥ Amount withdrawh from the Spectal Reserve /s 36{L){viil) - -
of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken Imto account for the purpese of provision
ufs 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balancé at the end of the year
a) Statuiory Resarvae ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1687 17,825 11,859
b} Amount ef special reserve u/s 36{1)vilijof Income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
c) Tatal 17,825 11,869
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Clix HouslIng Finance Private Limited

. Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amaunt In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

Investment

Particulars _ Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of tnvestments
fa) Inindia 16,190 155,318
(b) Outside lndia, - -
(it Provisions for Depreclaticn
(a) Inindia - -
(b)Y Outside India, - -
(i)  MNet Value of Investments
{al In India 16,190 155,318

{b) Outside India.

(2 Movement of  provisigns hald  towards
(i  Opening balance

(I} Add: Provisions made during the year

(i) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess

{iv) Llosltig halance

Derivatives

There are no forward rate agreement/ Interest rate swap entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022.

There are no exchange traded interest rate derivatives entered into by the.Company during the year ended 31 March 2023

and 31 March 2022,

The Company dogs not have any risk management policy pertaining to derivatives, associated risks and business purpose
served as the Company does not take any of the derivatives mentioned in a and b ahove during the year ended 31 March

2023 and 31 March 2022,

There wera no non-performing financial assets purchased or sold during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Details of transfer through assignment in respect of loans not in default during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March

2022
Particulars for the year ended 31 | Far the year ended 31 March
March 2023 2022
Entlty HFC NBFC HFC
Count of loan accounts assignad 276 198 84
Amount of loan accpunts assigned 623,457 4,54,900 153,990
Retention of beneficlal economic intarest (MRR) 5%-10%* 10% 10%
Welghted average maturity (Residual Maturity) 197 177 193
Weightad average holding period 19 17 23
Coverage of tangible security coverzge 100% 100% 100%
Rating wise distribution of ratad loans Unrated Unrated tnrated

*273 loan count have 10% MAR and 3 loan count have 5% MRR

C6.1 There are no purchaze of 'not In default categery' financial assets during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
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C8.

Clix Housing Finarice Private Eimited
Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamount In INR thousands, except for shate data unless stated otherwise)

{I) Exposures
Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Categary

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
A1 March 2022

1) Directexposure
[a) Rasidentlal Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by morigages on residential
proparty that is or will be cecupiad. by the borrower or thatis ranted;

{b} Commarcial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commerclal real estates (office buildings,
retail space, multipurpose commercial premises, mult-family residential buildings,
multi-tananted commerglal  premises, Industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acqulsition, developmant and construction, etc). Exposure would also
Include
non-fund baged (NFB} limits;

{c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securitles [MBS) and other securtised axposures

{a) Basidentlal
{b) Commercial Raal Estate

2} Indlrect exposure
Fund baged and non-flind based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Corpanles (HFCs)

1,158,437

119

2,094,895

1243

Total Exposure to Real £state Sector

1,158,556

2,096,138

{ii) Exposure-to Capital Market

Categery

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

a) direct investment in equity shares, convertlble bonds, converticle debentures and
units of aquity- orfented mutual funds the sorpus of which 1s ot exclusively Invested In
corparate dabt;

b) advances against shares/bonds/dabentures or other securities or on clean basls
to individuals for investment in sharés tincluding 1POs/ESOPs), convertible  bonds,
convertble dabentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

¢} advances for any other purposes whare shares of convertible bonds or
convertible debenturas or units of equity ariented mutual funds are taken as primary
securlty;

d) advances for any other purposes to the extentsacured by the coflateral security
of shares or convertibla bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity orientad
mutual funds I.e, wherethe primary secuwrity other than shares/convertible
bondsfeonvertible  debentures/units  of  equity oriented mutual funds does not
fully cover the advancas;

e) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokersand guarantees issued on behalf
of stockbsokers and market makers;

f) loans sanctioned to carporates against the security of shares / bonds/ debanturas or
other sacurities or on claan basis for meeting prornoter’s contribution to the equity of iew
companles I anticlpation of ralsing rasources;

g) bridge loans to companles against expected equity flows/issuas;

h)  Undsrwrlting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of
shares or convertible honds or convertilie dabenturas or units of equity oriented mutual
funds:

i} Financing to stackbrokers for margin trading;

7} Al exposuras to Alternative Invastment Funds:

(1} Category |

[ Category 1l

(i} Category IIi;

Total Exposure to Capital Market Sector
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{Hik Housing Finaned Private Limflad

Aniaxure 1k Notas lo financial statement for the year anded 31 March 2023

[All amoint in INA thousands, excapt For share data unless stated otherwisa}

{1} Datalls of financing of parent company producty

Thara has baen no financing made by ths Compeny of parent company’s products durlag the year anded 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
{Iv) Defalls of Single Borrawar Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit {GBL)

During the year andad 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 the Company's eredit expesures to single borrawars and group bocrewess were within the pradantial sxposure
Tirnits,

{v} Unsacured Advances
Total loans @3 gn 31 March 2023, includes INR 50,000 {31 March 2022: NIl which are unsacured loans.

{vi} Exposure to group companies engaged In real estate business

SNo. Deseelption Amaunt % of owned fund |
Il Expasure to any single entity In'a group angaged in reat
estate busiass - 0.00%]
(i Exposure La all entitles In a graup engaged in raaf estate
bessiness - 0.00%:

{vli} Reglatratian obtainad feom sther Arianctal sector ra

Tha Company has ohtained régistration from Financial intefiigerice Units, India vide Reglstration Mo, FIDOD00E30 and friom Securilies and Exchange Bodrd of ndfa {Dabt:
listed at Natlonal Stock Exchange of India) vide reglstration No, DRGE00,

Disclosura of Penalties imposed by NHS shd other regulators

Mo penalty has bean imposed by the NHB or any other regu ator during the year.
Related party transattions

Plaasa refer Note 33 for datailed note an Relatad party tranactions.

Group Structure

Pleasa refer Note 33 for group structure,

Ratings assigned by ecedlt rating agancies and migeatlon of ratings during the.year

As of 31 March 2028, there arg tatings beig assigned which are given in the bilow tabls,

Ratlng assigned

Instrument Rating agancy 2 T MR 2033 R AFIL N 08

Acuita ratings & X X
fank loans resaarch / Acuite Ad-f BWR AA- Aclite: Ak~ fBWA AA-
Brickwork ratinas

Acuite ratings &
Lung terny debt programmne research / Acitita AA- J BWR Av Actiite AA{/BWR AA-

- Briclwark ratings

Renilundration of dirgttors

Mo remuneration has been pald o direstors during the year {31 March 2022 Nif).

Management

fefer tothe Management Discirssion and Analyslsrepart far the relevant disclosuras.

Net Profit ar Loss for tha peried, privr period items and :I\angeé Ingccounting poliies

Dutipg the year there were ho priar period items which had an impact on current year's profit and ioss

Revenue Recognltion

‘Theta have been no Instances wharg revanue ragognition has baen postponed panding the resakution of significant uncertainties. Please refer Nots 3.3 for revenue
recagnilion policy.

Cansoitdated Firanclal Statements {CFS)

The Compaty doag not have-any invastmant in subsidiaryfassoclate/ jnint vamura zad hence requirernant of lldated finansint is net applivabl
Provistofis and Contingencles.

Breaf up of "Provisions and Contingencles’ shown under the head For the year ended For the year ended

Expenditure fn Profit and Loss Account 31 March 2023 21 March 2022

Provlsion for depraciation on [nvestrannt o -

Provisiop made towards income Tax 23,375 1663

Provision towards MPA 4,697 15,854

Provisian for stendard assats* 58,118 14.705]

Othez provisions and cantngencles* * {E435) 283

“Includes ECE un CRE of IMR'0 {31 March 2022: 11 8
% Other provisions and contingencles includes. ECL on foan commitment amounting to BIR (268) (31 March 2022 INR (238)), ECL on other financlals assats amcunting to
iNR 1588 (31 March 2022 INR $13) and ECL adjusted against [nterest income on stage 3 assels amounting to INR (1966] { 31 March 2022: M),
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€20,

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Annexure 1 to Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All ameunt in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Housing Non-Houslng

Break up of Loan & Advances and For the year For the yaar For the year For the year
Provisions thereon ended ended ended anded

31-03-23 31-03-22 31-03-23 31-03-22
Standard assets
{a) Total Qutstanding Amount 593,609 1,375,754 497,757 654,958
{b) Provisian made 42,829 12,739 34,566 6,639
Sub-Standard assets
fa) Total Qutstanding Amount 29,554 37,294 21,815 28,132
{b) Pravision made 10,700 11,188 7,898 8,440
Doubtful assets - Category |
(a} Total Qutstanding Amount 5,242 - 10,579 -
{b) Provisian made 1,898 - 3,830 -
Doubtful assets - Category H
{a) Total Outstanding Amount - - - -
{b) Provisian made . . - .
Doubtful assets - Catagory I
{a) Total Qutstanding Amount - - - -
(k) Provision made - - - -
Loss assets.
{a} Total Outsianding Amount - - - -
{b) Praviston made - - - -
Taotal
{a) Total Outstanding Amount 628,405 1,413,048 530,151 683,090
{b) Provislon made 55,527 23 927 46,294 15,079

Draw Down from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposuras and NPAs

. Concentration of Advances *

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 294,773 245,287
Parcantage of Advancas to twenty ldargest borrowers o Total 359 12%
Advances of the HFC ’ *
. Conceniration of Exposures *
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Total Exposure to twenty largest berrowers/ custorners 294,773 258,265
Pergantage of Exposures to twenty largest borrawers / customers to 25% 129
Total Exposurea of the HEC on borrowers { customers * "
*Gross of impairment loss allowance
. Concentration of NPAs
As at As at
Particutars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 49444 51,546




Ciix Houslng Financa Private Limited
Annexure 1 to Notes to Hnanclal statement far the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amount in INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwlse)

€21, Sectar-wlse NPAs '

St. Mo,

Sectar

Parcentage of NPAs to Total Advances In
that sactor

A

Housing Loans

indlviduals

5.54%

Butlders/Projact foans

Corporates

L

Othars (specify)

8,

Non Housing Loens

individuals

7.36%

Bullders/Project loans

Corparates

A fud|eafe

Cthers (Inter-carporate loan)

000%

€22, Mavement of NPAs

For the yearendad | For the year endad
Partlculazs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{i} _|Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 3.78% 2.21%
) |Movement of NPAs (Grass)
f2) ‘Opening balance 55,426 12 575
{h} Additlons during the vear 55,565 107,495
(58 Reductians during the year {53,800) {49,644)
{el} Closing halance 57,191 65,426 |
itl) | Movémaent of Net NPAs
(a) Ooening balance 45,797 8,802
[] Additigns during the yaar 35,783 71,745
{c] Aeductions during the year (38,716} (34,750)
{d) Closing balance 42,804 45,797
ill] | Movement of Provision For NPAs {excluding provision on standard assets)
(a) [Opening balance 18,628 3772
{b). Provisions made durlng the year 19,783 30,750
(c] Write-off / wiite-back of excess provislons {15,085) {24,894)
() Closing balance 24,326 15,528




cz3,

Risclosure of Complaints

) For the yearended | Forthe year ended
$r. 1o | Sub $r.no, Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Complaints recalvad by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year i) 0
F Number of complaints received during the year 51 43
3 Number of complaints disposed off during the year 8l 43
3,1 Of which, number of complalnts rejacted by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints gending at the end of the year . N
Maintainable complaints racelved by the NBFC from offica of Ombudsman
s Mumber of maintalnable complalnts receiver by the NBFC from the - -
5.1 Ot 5, number of complaints resplved 1n faveur of the NBFC by oflce - -
of Ombydsman
5.2 Of 5, number of complalnts rasolved through . -
53 OFf 5, numnber of cornplalns resolved aftar passing of Awards by - “
6 Number of Awards unimplemnented within the stipulated tima - -
{ather than'those appealed)
Grounds of Number of Number of % of incraase in the Number of 01 5, number of
Complaints complaints complaints riumber of complalnts | Compiaints Pending| complaints pending
pending at the | receivad during | receivad of the previous | atthe end of the bayond 30 days
beginning of the year yegr year
the year
1 2 3 4 3 B
F.Y, 2022-23
Foreclosyre
Related ) 28 71% i )
Banklng Relatad - 26 271% . -
PMAY Status " 2 -78% - -
Extended
Collection Chase 3 ! 67% i )
CI3IL Related “ 2 100% - -
MISC - 1 -75% - -
FY, 2021-22
Foraclosure
Related ) b i ) )
Banking Related - 7 . - .
PiiAY Related -+ 9 - - -
Extended 3
Collection Chase i
Loan cancellation 3
related i i )
MISC - 4 - - -




C2a.

€25,

C26.

car.

cag,

€29,

Dvarseas Assats (for those with Jolnt Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)

There were no overseas asséts as at 31 March 2023 snd 31 March 2022,

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

There were no off-balarice sheet SPVs sponsorad by the company during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

Loans against security of single product - gald jawellery:
The company has not granted any loans against gold jewellery as collateral.

There were no (31 March 2022: 2} fraud amounting to Nil {31 March 2022 INR 14,208) reported during the year.
The pravious year figures have been regrouped / retlassified In the current year as compared ta the previous year, wherever necessary,
Princlpal Busingss Criteria for HFCs

"Houslng finance company® shall mean a campany incorperated under the Compantes Act, 2013 that fulfils the following conditions:
a) It is an NBFC whasa financlal assats, In the business of providing finance for housing, ennstitute at Jeast 60% of its totaf assets (netted off by intangible
assets).

b} Out of the {otal assats {netted off by intangible assets}, not lass than 50% should be by way of housing financing far Individuals.

Prineipal business criteria for the Compény Is as below,

Particulars As st 37 March 2023
Total Assets 1,394,429
Less: Intangible assets# §240,332)
Net total Assets 1,154,097
Housing Finance 628,405
Individual Housing Finance 628,405
Percéntage of bousing finance to total assets gnetted off intangible assets)*™ 4,459
Percentage af indvidual housing finance tg total assets (netted off intangibie assets)** 54.45%

“# Intanglhle essets include prepaid ekpenses, EIS recelvable, Deferred tax assets and Dther Intanglkle Assets,

*# Reglsterad HFCs who do not fulfill the criterla given In a) and b) above but wish ta gontinue d@s HFCs shalf maintgin a minimum of 55% towards housing
finance and £5% towards housing finance for Indivicuals by 31 March 2023, dnd, a minimum of §0% towards housing finance and 50% towards hausing
finance far individuals by 31 Masgch 2024,

Minlmurm PBG Criteria for the year ended 31 March 2023 15 less by 55 basis polits and the Corapany has board appraved plan to achieve Principal
business criterta of 60% for financial year 2023-24.




{li% Housing Finance Private Limited
Aonexura 1 to Notes to financial statement For the year anded 31 March 2023
{All amount In INR thousands, excapt far share data unless stated otharwlse}:

€30, Detalls of securftlsatlon transaétlon of the Campany as ar orlginater v respect of outstanding amuunt of securitised assets ls glven balaw:

{in Crores)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 33 (arch 2022

1 _|Nao of SPVs sponsorad by the HFC far securitisation transactions

2

o

Total amount of securitised assets as per hooks of the SPVs sponsored

54,49

3 |Total amount of gxpasuraes retainad by the HFC lowards the MRR as on the date of balange shest**

{1} Dff-balance shaet exposures towzrds Credif Enhancements

(I} On-balaries sheet sxposuras towards Cradit Enhancaments

a) Fiked Daposits and Mutual Funds

2.55

1l Pass throush Certificatas

0.53

4 . |Aimourit of exposures to securitlsation transactlons other than MAR

{1} off-balance shept exposuris towards Credit
Snhangaments

a) Exposure to own sacurltisatlons*

b Fxposura ta third party securitisations

*Corporate guarantea glven by Clix Capitel Services Privaks Limited INR 1:45 Cr as on 81 March 2023 | 31 ivarch 2022: Nif)

** Minimum Retention Ratle

CIL. Sectoral Exposure

[l crores)

As at-31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Totat Exposura
Tncludes ory
balance shaat and
off -balanca shcet

i

Sactors

Gross NFAs

Paycentage of Gross
NPA3 to total exposurn
In that sector

Totad Exposure Gross NPAs
{tnciudes an hatance
shaat and off -hatance
sheet exposure)

Parcentage of
Gross NPAS to total
axposate in that
$actor

Agricylturs and allfed activitias -

Industry -

03 [t i

Servicas -

ES

Personal [oans

{1} Housfng Loans

348 5,549

143,28 373

{1} Men Housing. Loans

3.24 7.36%

pres)

831 2.81

li]} Others

012 - 0.00%

Totalof Parsons| Loans

8.2 6.28%

209.51 6.54 3129

8 |Financtal Servicss [Intarscorporate lean)

- 2004

£32. Iritra-group expasurag®

Partlcidars

As at 31 March 2022

As ak 31 March 2022

i

1 Totat ameunt of Intea-group axposuras

£0,000

b

Total amount of top 20 Intra-group exposures

50,000

3 |Percentage of Infra-group expasiires to total exposure of the HFC on
barrowars.

171%

0.00%

*inchudes Inte-corporata loan givan by the Compary. [t dees not include Intarcorporate loan taken by the Compray, ather Intercampany payables/receivahilas

€38, Braach of Covenant

Thera is no breach of the terms of covenants I respect of debt securities issues and Borrowings [other than Debt Securlkies) as on 34 March 2025, While thers was a breach In one of the
cevenant duly reperted £ lender during the year, nene of the Lender hastaksn any action 05 the same and the same was.cured by 31 March 2023 (32 March 2022 Nil)

C34, Divergance in Assat Classificatian and Provisioning

The National Housing Bank{NHB) assessment was completed th) 31 March 2022 & ne divergence was Identified in Asset Classification and Provisloning.

C35. Unhedged foreign currancy akposure

Thare were no Lithedged foreign currency exposuce during the year (34 March 2022 NIl
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Chix Housing Finance Private Limitad
Annexure 1 to Notes to financlal statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amount in INR thousands, except for share. data unlass stated otherwise)

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Houslng Finance Company as requirad in terms of Paragraph 16 of Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Finznetal Company —
Housing Finance Company (fedarve Bank) Diractions, 2621:
Particulars

Liabllitles slde: 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

() [Loans and advances avalled by the NBFC's inclusive of Amount

. Amaount
interest accrued thereon butnat pald; cutstapding Amaunt overdue Amount outstanding averdua

#) Debentures :Secured 06,253 “ 403,747 -
: Unsecured .

{Other than faliing within the meaning of public
deposits)

1) Deferred Credits - - - R
<} TermLoans . - 561,857 .
d} Inter-corporate loans and horrowing . - 1,100,000 B
o Cornmertlal Paper . ’ - B .
f) Public Depasit - - - R
g} Othar Ldans:-
External commetcial borrowings . - . .
Bank overdraft " - - -
Working Capttal Demand Loan .
Berrowing against Securitized Partiolie 308,713
Finance lease obligation - N “ -

Assats slfe: Amount eutstanding | Amount eutstanding
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(2} iBreak-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than thosa
Incfuded In (3} below]:

Secured 1,068,356 2,096,138
Unsecured 90,000 -
Break up of [eased Assets and stock on hire and othar assefs counting
(3)__ |towards AFC actlvities

1) Lease assets including lease reritals under sundry
a) Financial jease . -
b) Operating leasa - .
i Stock on hire Including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hive - -
4) Repossessed Assets - .
i) Other [nans cotinting towards AFC activities

2} Loans where assets Have been repossessad 35,891 -

b) Loans other than {a) above - -

4) |Break-up of investments:

Current ipvestments :

1. Quoted:

{i) Shares: (a} Equity . .
b} Preference - -

lii) Debentures and Bonds - -

fiii) Units of mutual funds 18,375 155,318

(v} Government Securities - -

{v) Others - -

2. Unquoted:
{i} Shares: (2) Equity- - -

{b) Preference - -
[} Debentures and Bonds: - .
i} 3nits of mutual furds E -
{iv] Gavernment Seciritles - -
[{v) Others - -

Long Tern investments:
1. GQuoted:
fij Shares: (a) Eguity - -
{&) Preference - -
{il} Debentures and Bonds - -
{ili}) Units of mutual funds - -
{iv) Govérnmiant Securities . 4
vl Gthors - N

2, Unguoted:
I} Shares: {a} Eauity - .

{b] Preference - i
(i} Debenturas and Sonds B R
{Hil} Units of mutual funds - R
[lv) Government Securities - R
(v)_Cthers 5.315 .




Chix Housing Finance Private Limited
Arnaxure 1 to Notes 1o Bnanciat statement for the year ended 32 March 2023
(A amount In INR thousands, except for share data unless stated otharwise)

{5} Barrower group-wise dlassificatien of assets financed asin (2) and (3) above: ‘
Category Mmount-net of provisions l
31-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22
Secured Unsecured Total| sacurad)  Unsecured Total
1. Related Partlas
(a) Substdlarlas - - - . " -
{&) Companies n tha sama group 0 83,967 83,967 - - -
15] Sthar related parties - . . . . .
2. Other than related parties 972,769 N 972,769 2:057,432 - 2057132
Total 972,764 83,967 1,056,736 2,057,132 - 2,057,132

{6}  |Invester group-wise classification of all Investments {currant and long term}in sharas and securlties (bath quated and unquoted):

A1-Mar-23 3i-Mar-22

Category Markat Value [ Book Value (Net of | Market Value / Breakup | Book Value

Break up of fair Pravisions) ar fair value or NAY {Net of
valus or NAV Provisions)

1. Related Partles:- L
{a) Subsidiaries - - - ~
{ly) Companies in the same group - - . N
l{c) Dthar related parties - - B .
2. Other than related parties 16,190 16,190 155,318 155,318
Total 15,190 18,190 155,318 155,318

{7} |Other Infarmation 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
iy  |Gross Non-Performing Assets
a) Reiated parties -~ -
(b} Other than refatad parties 67,191 85,426
fii}  [MetNon-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties - -
(1) Othesthan related parties 42,864 43,797
\liiiY _|Assets acquired in satisfaction of dabt - -




